
 
04-22-BOD 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Apr 22, 2022 at 9:00 AM EDT to Apr 22, 2022 at 12:00 PM EDT 

Agenda 

1. Events  

Arbour Day Tree Sale 
Date: Saturday, May 14, 2022 8:00 AM - 12:00 PM 
Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
 
Spring Volunteer Tree Plants 
Date: Various Dates 
Location: Across NVCA Watershed 
 
Tiffin Nature Program 
Date: Every Tuesday and Thursday from April 5 to June 23  
Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
 
PA Day Camp 
Date: June 3, 2022 
Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
 
Self-Guided Maple Syrup Tour 
Date: March 1 - April 15, 2022  
Location: Tiffin Conservation Area 

 

2. Call to Order 

3. Land Acknowledgement 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority Board acknowledges that we are 
situated on the traditional land of the Anishinaabeg. The Anishinaabeg include the 
Odawa, Saulteaux, Anishinaabeg, Mississauga and Algonquin who spoke several 
languages including Anishinaabemowin and Potawatomi. We are dedicated to 
honouring Indigenous history and culture and committed to moving forward in the 
spirit of reconciliation and respect with all First Nation, Métis and Inuit people. 

4. Declaration of Pecuniary and Conflict of Interest 

5. Motion to Adopt the Agenda 

Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: the agenda for the Board of Directors Meeting #04-22-BOD 
dated April 22, 2022 be approved. 

6. Announcements  



There are no announcements at this time. 

7. Presentations 

Tiffany Cecchetto, CPA, CA, KPMG LLP will conduct a presentation on NVCA's 202 
Audit. 
Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: the Board receives the presentation regarding NVCA's 2021 
Audit and the Draft Financial Statements. 

8. Deputations 

There are no deputations at this time. 

9. Hearings 

There are no hearings at this time. 

10. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion 

Board Members are requested to identify items from the Consent List that they wish 
to have considered for separate discussion. 

11. Adoption of Consent List and Identification of Items Requiring Separate 
Discussion 

Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: agenda item number(s) _________was identified as requiring 
separate discussion, be referred for discussion under Agenda Item #9; and 
FURTHER THAT: all Consent List Agenda Items not referred for separate 
discussion be adopted as submitted to the board and staff be authorized to take all 
necessary action required to give effect to same; and 
FURTHER THAT: any items in the Consent List not referred for separate 
discussion, and for which conflict has been declared, are deemed not to have been 
voted on or discussed by the individual making the declaration. 

12. Consent List 

12.1. Adoption of Minutes 
Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: the minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting #03-22-BOD 
dated on March 25, 2022 be approved. 

12.1.1. Adoption of Minutes 
Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: the minutes of the Agricultural Advisory Committee #01-
22-BOD dated on March 31, 2022 be approved.  

12.2. Staff Reports 
12.2.1. Staff Report No. 11-04-22-BOD from Sheryl Flannagan, 
Director, Corporate Services 
Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT:  the Board of Directors approve Staff Report No. 11-04-
22-BOD regarding the Employee Handbook Update. 



12.2.2. Staff Report No. 12-04-22-BOD from Sheryl Flannagan, 
Director, Corporate Services 
Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Directors receive Staff Report No. 12-04-22-
BOD regarding the 2022 first quarter financials; and 
FURTHER THAT: staff continue to monitor budget activities. 

12.2.3. Staff Report No. 13-04-22-BOD from Maria Leung, 
Communications Coordinator  
Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: Staff Report No. 13-04-22-BOD regarding NVCA 
Communications – March 12, 2022 – April 8, 2022, be received. 

13. Discussion on Notice of Motion 

Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: the annual Board of Director meeting schedule be amended to 
seven (7) regularly scheduled meetings, down from the current eleven, now 
scheduled as shown in Schedule 1 below; and  
FURTHER THAT: going forward Board meetings be held annually in January, 
February, April, June, August, September and December; and 
FURTHER THAT: member remunerations in the form of a per diem paid for each 
meeting attended and an honorarium for the Chair and Vice-chair to cover 
expenses outside Authority approved committees, as provide in sections 2.13.2 and 
2.13.8 respectively in our Administrative Bylaws - Governance and Administrative 
Policies remain unchanged; and 
FURTHER THAT: any need for additional Board meetings be scheduled at the Call 
of the Chair. 

14. Other Business 

15. Adjourn 

Recommendation: 
RESOLVED THAT: this meeting adjourn at ____ to meet again on May 27, 2022 or 
at the call of the Chair. 
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Presentation of Audited Financial Statements 

Nottawasaga Valley 
Conservation 
Authority

April 22, 2022
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Presentation of Audited Financial Statements

Agenda 

1. Communication of significant matters 

2. Overview of the audited financial statements

3. Questions
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Executive Summary

• The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a 
member of the Board of Directors in your review of the results of our 
audit of the financial statements of Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 
Authority the year ended December 31, 2021

As of today, we have completed the audit of the financial statements, 
with the exception of certain remaining procedures, which include 
amongst others:

• Receipt of the signed management representation letter (to be 
signed upon approval of the financial statements)

• Completing our discussions with the Board of Directors

• Obtaining evidence of the  approval of the financial statements

Our audit report will be dated as of the date the Board approves the 
financial statements (anticipated to be today’s date)

• There were no significant audit risks identified • We determined materiality and the corresponding audit 
misstatement posting threshold to be $143,000 and $7,150 
respectively.  Materiality was calculated using preliminary current 
year revenues which is consistent with the prior year

• Throughout the course of the audit work, there was one corrected 
misstatement made relating to an accrual.  There are no items that 
remain uncorrected.

Purpose of the report Finalizing the audit

Audit Risks Materiality and Audit Adjustments
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Communication of Significant Matters 

Key Points 
• Audit is complete

• Pending Board approval of financial statements 

• Financial statement accounting policies are consistent with prior year

• Audit Report
• An unqualified audit opinion has been included with the 2021 financial statements.

• No other significant matters to communicate to the Board
• No change in audit plan
• No significant issues or unusual transactions
• No issues with management
• No corrected or uncorrected audit misstatements
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Auditors’ Opinion
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Auditors’ Opinion
• Format and presentation of the audit report 

is consistent with the prior year

• Unqualified or ‘clean’ audit opinion

• Represents the highest level of assurance 
available under Canadian auditing standards

• Based on materiality of $143,000 and a 
posting threshold of $7,150

• Financial statements remain draft pending 
approval by the Board
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements

Summary of Financial Results 
 Cash $1.8 million
 Increase in cash as a result of positive cash flow from 

operating activities given the increase in deferred 
revenue and accounts payable as of December 31, 2020 
along with the redemption of over $500K in investments 
in 2020.

 A/R – No significant change noted year over year.

 Investments   $522K
 Redemptions of investment upon maturity in the 2021 

year end and transferred to the cash account

 A/P - No significant change noted year over year.

 Deferred Revenue  $338K
 Increase in subdivision, condo fee and site plan deferred 

revenue ($93K) and $100K increase in deferred revenue 
for fees received in advance for the use of NVCA 
property (various lots) as an alternative outlet for 
stormwater for the Regional Commercial District Project, 
a $70K increase in the John McDonald Foundation 
deferred revenue along with certain small increases in 
deferred project revenue. 

 Tangible Capital Assets 
 Purchased assets: $65K
 Amortization (199K)

 $134K
 The capital asset purchases relate mainly to IT 

infrastructure (server, survey equipment and laptops and 
monitors)

Overview
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results  Municipal Funding (overall)  $82K
 Overall, municipal levies have increased (based on 

population growth and inflation) in the year.  
Municipal grants have increased $50K mainly as a 
result of additional grant revenue of $38K with Oro 
Medonte through an MOU

 Provincial grants  $19K
 No significant changes to note in the provincial 

grant funding overall

 Federal grants  $773K
 Increased funding in 2021 is due to the CEWS 

claims relating to the reduced revenue over the 
2020 vs. 2019 year ends.

 User fees  $275K
 Increase in revenue given increased activity given 

slight recover from the pandemic (weddings, 
summer camp revenue, land use passes and 
school programming) along with an increase in 
planning permits and construction work in 2021. 

 Contributions and donations  $88K
 Decrease in the revenue as a result of lower 

wetland compensation contributions and lower 
miscellaneous revenue streams in the year. 

Overview
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results  Expenses  increase of 2.3% in actual expenses 
compared with a 21.8% increase in revenue.  A 
reminder there is one time federal government 
funding included in the federal government grants 
line in 2021 ($740K approximately).  Without this one 
time funding source, the revenue increase would be 
6.4% compared to the 2.3% increase in expenses.  
Expenses were 1.9% higher than budgeted for 2021.

 Annual surplus  Current year surplus realized as a 
result of the increase in one time revenue as a result 
of the COVID-19 pandemic (federal grants) and well 
controlled operating expenses noted in 2021

Overview
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 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

Wages and benefits Purchased Supplies Professional and
consulting fees

Amortization of
tangible capital assets

Occupancy costs Other

2021 2020 2019 2018

Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results 
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results 

 Operations
 $1.4 million cash inflows in operating activities
 Add back of the non-cash transactions 

(surplus and amortization).  Increase in cash 
flow from operating activities mainly as a 
result of the current year surplus given the 
one time federal funding recorded in the 
current year along with an increase in 
deferred revenue

 Investing
 Redemption of investments upon maturity in 

2021

 Capital activities
 $65K spent on capital

 The capital asset purchases relate mainly to 
IT infrastructure (server, survey equipment 
and laptops and monitors)

Overview
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results 
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results 
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results 

• $362K net increase to operational reserve fund (per board resolution, relating to current year surplus given one 
time funding)

• $367K increase in human resources fund per board resolution

• $121K net increase to the capital fund (combination of expenditures in the year and allocation of the current year 
surplus and capital levy transfer)

• Increase to forestry, watershed, environmental education and health waters given transfer of surplus from 2021 
given one time federal funding.

Overview
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Overview of the Audited Financial statements (cont’d)

Summary of Financial Results 

Overall total provincial funding has increased 
by $19K No significant changes to note in the 
provincial grant funding overall

 $773K –Increased funding in 2021 is due to 
the CEWS claims relating to the reduced 
revenue over the 2020 vs. 2019 year ends.

 $275K - Increase in revenue given increased 
activity given slight recover from the pandemic 
(weddings, summer camp revenue, land use 
passes and school programming) along with an 
increase in planning permits and construction 
work in 2021. 
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Thank you

© 2021 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International 
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The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the 
circumstances of any particular individual or entity. Although we endeavour to provide accurate 
and timely information, there can be no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date 
it is received or that it will continue to be accurate in the future. No one should act on such 
information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough examination of the 
particular situation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 

To the Members of Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nottawasaga Valley 
Conservation Authority (the “Authority”), which comprise: 

 the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021 
 the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended 
 the statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then ended 
 the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
 and notes and schedule to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”) 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Authority as at December 31, 2021, and its results of operations 
and accumulated surplus, its changes in net financial assets and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. 

We are independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Authority or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 
reporting process.  

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, 
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  

We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represents the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants  
 

Sudbury, Canada 

April 22, 2022 
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NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020

Financial Assets

Cash $ 3,925,434    $ 2,129,471     
Accounts receivable (note 2) 263,973      255,940        
Investment -                  522,186        

4,189,407    2,907,597     

Financial Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 500,328      481,386        
Deferred revenue (note 4) 1,496,405    1,158,707     

1,996,733    1,640,093     

Net financial assets 2,192,674    1,267,504     

Non-Financial Assets

Tangible capital assets (note 3) 8,712,545    8,845,972     
Prepaid expenses 47,690        39,333          

8,760,235    8,885,305     

Contingent liabilities (note 7)

Commitments (note 13)

Accumulated surplus (note 5) $ 10,952,909  $ 10,152,809    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

______________________________  Chair

______________________________  CAO/Secretary - Treasurer

1
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Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2021 2020

Budget Total Total

(note 11)

Revenue:  
Municipal levies
   - general matching $ 97,307         $ 97,307        $ 97,307          
   - general non-matching 2,569,541    2,562,542    2,528,356     
   - special 16,000         3,000          4,938            
Municipal grants 55,000         100,122      50,714          

Total municipal funding 2,737,848    2,762,971    2,681,315     

Government - provincial grants (schedule) 312,807       334,824      316,030        
                 - federal grants (schedule) 114,510       947,388      174,295        

User fees (schedule) 1,370,040    1,302,434    1,027,319     
Contributions and donations 501,040       485,093      572,965        
Interest income 25,000         11,903        19,273          
Miscellaneous -                  755             7,126            

5,061,245    5,845,368    4,798,323     

Expenses (note 9):
 Planning services 1,392,395    1,357,656    1,416,403     

Administrative support 535,416       562,770      565,208        
Healthy waters 596,245       608,578      574,274        

 Reforestation 350,694       343,232      357,462        
Flood forecast and warning 318,213       271,833      334,491        
Tiffin Centre infrastructure maintenance 329,675       300,556      311,317        
Corporate governance 317,283       334,499      316,933        
Watershed science 463,507       452,460      410,021        
Environmental education 185,237       219,045      172,142        
GIS technical support 267,517       266,175      262,727        
Conservation lands 193,239       248,579      200,730        
Workshop vehicles and equipment -                  168             219               
Engineering and technical services -                  79,717        9,101            

 4,949,421    5,045,268    4,931,028     

Annual surplus (deficit) 111,824       800,100      (132,705)       

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 10,152,809  10,152,809  10,285,514   

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 10,264,633  $ 10,952,909  $ 10,152,809   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
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Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2021 2020

Budget Total Total

(note 11)

Annual surplus (deficit) $ 111,824     $ 800,100        $ (132,705)    

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (264,574)    (65,801)         (47,532)      
Amortization of tangible capital assets 120,000     198,974        206,702
Loss on disposition of tangible capital assets -                 254               -                 g

(32,750)      933,527        26,465       

Acquisition of prepaid expenses -                 (47,690)         (39,333)      
Use of prepaid expenses -                 39,333          34,250       

-                 (8,357)           (5,083)        

Change in net financial assets (32,750)      925,170        21,382       

Net financial assets, beginning of year 1,267,504  1,267,504     1,246,122  

Net financial assets, end of year $ 1,234,754  $ 2,192,674     $ 1,267,504  

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
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NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 800,100       $ (132,705)        
Items not involving cash:

Amortization of tangible capital assets 198,974       206,702         
Loss on disposition of capital assets 254              -                     

999,328       73,997           

Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable (8,033)          (18,417)          
Prepaid expenses (8,357)          (5,083)            
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 18,942         121,811         
Deferred revenue 337,698       255,605         

1,339,578    427,913         

Investing activities:
Redemption of investments 522,186       508,111         

522,186       508,111         

Capital activities:
Purchase of tangible capital assets (65,801)        (47,532)          

(65,801)        (47,532)          

Increase in cash 1,795,963    888,492         

2,129,471    1,240,979      

Cash, end of year $ 3,925,434    $ 2,129,471      

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Cash, beginning of year

4
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NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Year ended December 31, 2021 
 

 
 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority (the "Authority") is a land and water management agency 
established under the provisions of the Conservation Authorities Act of Ontario.  The Authority is a 
registered charitable organization and is exempt from income taxes under the Canadian Income Tax 
Act. 

1. Significant accounting policies: 

The financial statements for the Authority are the responsibility of and prepared by management in 
accordance with the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada Public Sector Accounting 
Handbook, that sets out generally accepted accounting principles for government not-for-profit 
organizations in Canada.  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS), excluding Sections PS4200 and PS4270, 
with the following significant accounting policies: 

(a) Basis of accounting: 

The financial statements are prepared using an accrual basis of accounting which recognizes 
the effect of transactions and events in the period in which the transactions and events occur, 
regardless of whether there has been a receipt or payment of cash or its equivalent.  Accrual 
accounting recognizes an asset until the future economic benefit underlying the asset is partly 
or wholly used or lost. 

(b) Tangible capital assets: 

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization.  Cost includes all 
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of the tangible capital asset including 
transportation costs, installation costs, designed and engineering fees, legal fees and site 
preparation costs.  Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the time of 
donation, with a corresponding amount recorded as revenue.  Amortization is being recorded 
at the following rates and methods commencing once the asset is available for productive use 
as follows: 
 

Asset Basis Rate 

 

Small equipment Declining-balance 20% 
Equipment and vehicles Declining-balance   25% 
Computer equipment Straight-line 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures Straight-line 10 years 
Site utilities Straight-line 15 years 
Buildings Straight-line 50 years 
Dam and structures Straight-line 50 years 

 

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate they are no longer able to 
contribute to the Authority’s ability to provide goods or services, or when the value of future 
economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset are less than their net book value.  
The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the statement of operations and 
accumulated surplus. 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(c) Cash: 

Cash consists of cash on hand. 

(d) Deferred revenue: 

Funds received for specific purposes which are for future services are accounted for as 
deferred revenue on the statement of financial position.  The revenue is recognized in the 
statement of operations in the year in which services are provided. 

(e) Pension plan: 

The Authority is an employer member of the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System 
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer, defined benefit pension plan.  The Board of Trustees, 
representing plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of 
the pension plan, including investment of the assets and administration of the benefits.  The 
Authority has adopted defined contribution plan accounting principles for this plan because 
insufficient information is available to apply defined benefit plan accounting principles.  The 
Authority records as pension expense the current service cost, amortization of past service 
costs and interest costs related to the future employer contributions to the plan for the past 
employee service. 

(f) Reserves: 

The Authority internally allocates its accumulated surplus to capital reserves to finance the 
cost of tangible capital assets, purchases, maintenance and related expenditures and 
operating reserves in order to ensure funds are available for financial relief in the event of a 
significant loss of revenues or other financial emergency for which no other source of funding 
is available.  These reserve allocations are directed by the Board of Directors of the Authority. 

(g) Revenue recognition: 

Provincial, federal and municipal grant funding revenues are recognized in the year to which 
the program relates and when the related expenses are incurred.  Amounts unused at year 
end are deferred to subsequent years.  Municipal levies are recognized in the year they are 
levied to member municipalities. User fees are recognized as revenue over the period the 
services are performed.  Other revenues are recognized when they are received or receivable 
and collectability is reasonably assured. 
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(h) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the year.  Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the 
carrying amounts of tangible capital assets, the allowance for doubtful accounts and deferred 
revenue.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Accounts receivable: 
 

  2021 2020 
 
HST recoverable  $ 10,572  $ 6,168  
Fees for services and other 207,575 237,877 
Government grants 59,376  25,445 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (13,550) (13,550) 
 

  $ 263,973 $ 255,940 
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Year ended December 31, 2021

3.  Tangible capital assets:

Balance at Additions Disposals Balance at
December 31, and and December 31,

Cost 2020 Transfers Write-offs 2021

Land $ 6,499,787    $ -              $ -              $ 6,499,787      
Buildings 1,978,239    -              -              1,978,239      
Dams and structures 3,063,418    -              -              3,063,418      
Site utilities 637,331       4,818          -              642,149         
Equipment and vehicles 460,884       -              3,217          457,667         
Small equipment 260,157       13,024        -              273,181         
Computer equipment 274,699       47,959        63,961        258,697         
Furniture and fixtures 264,444       -              -              264,444         

Total $ 13,438,959  $ 65,801        $ 67,178        $ 13,437,582    

Balance at Disposals Balance at
Accumulated December 31, and Amortization December 31,
Amortization 2020 Write-offs Expense 2021

Land $ -              $ -              $ -              $ -                
Buildings 845,596       -              39,206        884,802         
Dams and structures 2,237,897    -              55,910        2,293,807      
Site utilities 539,557       -              17,502        557,059         
Equipment and vehicles 346,776       (3,154)         28,463        372,085         
Small equipment 187,523       -              17,132        204,655         
Computer equipment 211,714       (63,770)       32,885        180,829         
Furniture and fixtures 223,924       -              7,876          231,800         

Total $ 4,592,987    $ (66,924)       $ 198,974      $ 4,725,037      

Net book value, Net book value,
December 31, December 31,

2020 2021

Land $ 6,499,787    $ 6,499,787      
Buildings 1,132,643    1,093,437      
Dams and structures 825,521       769,611         
Site utilities 97,774         85,090           
Equipment and vehicles 114,108       85,582           
Small equipment 72,634         68,526           
Computer equipment 62,985         77,868           
Furniture and fixtures 40,520         32,644           

Total $ 8,845,972    $ 8,712,545      

8
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4. Deferred revenue: 

Revenue from the following sources received that were unexpended for the year have been 
deferred: 
 

  2021 2020 
 
Unearned project revenue $ 65,738 $ 49,862 
Forestry – follow-up tending 42,639 49,185 
Subdivision and condominium fees     496,133 403,138 
Site planning 148,875 160,112 
H John McDonald Foundation 73,110 7,498 
Other 104,272 121,349 
Department of Fisheries and Oceans 24,164 24,951 
Compensation Funds 437,178 325,149 
Forests Ontario 43,373 17,463 
WWF 35,438 –    
TD Friends of the Environment 25,485 –    
 

  $ 1,496,405 $ 1,158,707 
 

5. Accumulated surplus: 
 

  2021 2020 
 
Internally restricted reserves (note 8)  $ 2,251,622 $  1,319,960 
Investments in tangible capital assets   8,701,287 8,832,849 
 

  $ 10,952,909 $ 10,152,809 

 

6. Credit facilities: 

The Authority has a demand loan facility with Scotiabank.  This credit facility has an authorized 
credit limit of $500,000 (2020 - $500,000) and bears interest at the bank's prime rate less 0.5%.  
There is no balance outstanding on the demand loan facility as at December 31, 2021 (2020 - 
$Nil). 

7. Contingent liabilities: 

Legal actions and claims: 

The Authority has received statements of claim as defendant under various legal actions resulting 
from its involvement in land purchases, fatalities, personal injuries and flooding on or adjacent to 
its properties.  The Authority maintains insurance coverage against such risks and has notified its 
insurers of the legal actions and claims.  It is not possible at this time to determine the outcome of 
these claims and, therefore, no provision has been made in these financial statements. 
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8. Internally restricted reserve funds: 

Appropriations are made from accumulated surplus to various reserve funds upon approval of the 
Board of Directors. 

Operational Reserve: 

The Operational Reserve was established to provide funds to purchase equipment as required. 

Forestry Reserve: 

The Forestry Reserve was established to provide funds to support the Forestry Program. 

Watershed Science 

The Watershed Science Reserve was established to provide funds to the Watershed Science 
Program. 

Environmental Education Reserve: 

The Environmental Education Reserve was established to cover future environmental equipment 
and material purchases. 

Human Resources Reserve: 

The Human Resources Reserve was established to provide funds to cover human resource 
issues. 

New Lowell Reserve Fund: 

The New Lowell Reserve Fund was established to cover future capital expenses for the New 
Lowell campground. 

Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve: 

The Capital Repair and Replacement Reserve was established to cover future capital expenses. 

Healthy Waters Reserve: 

The Healthy Waters Reserve was established to cover future expenses for the Healthy Waters 
program. 

Land Management Acquisition Reserve: 

The Land Management Acquisition Reserve was established to assist with acquisitions of 
significant or environmentally sensitive lands.  The reserve would compliment the ongoing 
acquisition program and partnership arrangements with Nature Conservancy Canada and the 
Ministry of Natural Resources for Minesing Swamp and Niagara Escarpment lands. 

Planning Reserve: 

The Planning Reserve was established to cover legal activities and unexpected variations in 
planning revenue. 
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8. Internally restricted reserve funds (continued): 

The internally restricted reserve funds consist of the following: 
 

  2021 2020 
 

Operational reserve fund $ 628,160 $  265,889 
Forestry reserve fund 21,576 –    
Watershed reserve fund 35,219 –    
Environmental education fund 14,412 6,331 
Human resources reserve fund 606,956 239,866 
New Lowell reserve fund 30,873 57,136 
Capital repair and replacement reserve fund 813,601 692,001 
Healthy waters reserve fund 61,123 13,936 
Land management acquisition reserve fund 39,702 44,801 
 

Total internally restricted reserve funds   $ 2,251,622 $ 1,319,960 
 

9. Expenses by object: 
 

  2021 2020 
 

Wages and benefits $ 3,724,338 $ 3,648,149 
Purchased supplies  645,820  600,254 
Professional and consulting fees  136,683  159,815 
Amortization of tangible capital assets  198,974  206,702 
Occupancy costs  180,817  168,120 
Travel and vehicle  37,648  31,074 
Office supplies and expenses  27,340  31,573 
Education and training    10,159  5,845 
Licenses, memberships and dues  41,956  46,902 
Advertising  12,465  12,967 
Interest and bank   29,068  19,627 
 

  $ 5,045,268 $ 4,931,028 
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10. Pension plan: 

OMERS provides pension services to more than 500,000 active and retired members and 
approximately 1,000 employers.  Each year an independent actuary determines the funding status 
of OMERS Primary Pension Plan (the "Plan") by comparing the actuarial value of invested assets 
to the estimated present value of all pension benefits that members have earned to date.  The 
most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan was conducted at December 31, 2021.  The results of 
this valuation disclosed total going concern actuarial liabilities of $120,796 million (2020 - 
$113,055 million) in respect of benefits accrued for service with total going concern actuarial net 
assets at that date of $117,665 million (2020 - $109,844 million) indicating a going concern 
actuarial deficit of $3,131 million (2020 - $3,211 million).  Because OMERS is a multi-employer 
plan, any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of Ontario municipal 
organizations and their employees and the Authority’s share is not determinable.  As a result, the 
Authority does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit. 

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2021 was $268,710 (2020 - $281,627) and is included as 
an expense in the statement of operations and accumulated surplus. 

11. Budget figures: 

The budget adopted by the Board on December 11, 2020 includes the annual budget for capital 
additions and reserve transfers which are not reflected in the 2021 actual figures within the 
statement of operations.  As a result, the budget figures presented in the statement of operations 
and accumulated surplus and change in net financial assets represent the financial plan adopted 
by the Board with adjustment as follows: 
 
 

Annual Surplus per budget approved by the Board     $  –    
 
Less:  Contributions to reserves  (152,750) 
  
Add:  Capital additions  264,574 
 

Surplus per financial statements     $ 111,824 
 

12. Segmented reporting: 

The Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook Section 
PS2700, Segment Disclosures, establishes standards on defining and disclosing segments in a 
government's financial statements.  Government organizations that apply these standards are 
encouraged to provide disclosures established by this section when their operations are diverse 
enough to warrant such disclosures. 

The presentation of the items on the statement of operations and included within note 9 are 
considered sufficient to meet the requirements of PS2700, Segment Disclosures. 
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13. Commitments: 

Lease obligations: 

The Authority is presently leasing equipment with a quarterly rental payment of $2,485 which 
matures in 2026. The minimum lease payments required over the next five years are as follows: 
 

 

2022 $ 9,940 
2023 9,940 
2024 9,940 
2025 9,940 
2026 4,971 

 

 $ 44,731 

 

Rental arrangements: 

The Authority leases five pieces of property to three local municipalities and two not-for-profit 
organizations for no financial consideration.  Under the terms of the agreements the municipalities 
and the not-for-profit organizations are responsible for all costs associated with their respective 
properties.  The leases may be terminated by either party with written notice.  The agreement with 
one local municipality extends to 2023 and the remaining two agreements with the local 
municipalities each extend to 2023 and 2025.  The agreements with the two not-for-profit 
organizations extend to 2022 and 2023 respectively.  

The Authority leases the New Lowell Campground and Conservation Park to two individuals who 
manage the park.  Under the terms of the agreement which extends to April 14, 2023, the 
managers will pay the Authority a lease amount equal to $18,815 plus HST per year with an 
additional 3% increase every year.  The lease has a five year renewal option with the 
understanding that one year's notice must be given by either party to terminate the lease.  The 
Authority is responsible for property taxes and property insurance while the managers are 
responsible for operational costs.  Capital projects are paid for by the managers and become the 
property of the Authority. 

The Authority leases various agricultural lands to farmers for minimal financial consideration under 
the terms of two agreements which both expire in 2024.  The minimum future rental income to be 
received related to these leases varies depending on the tenant. 

 
14. Comparative information: 

Certain 2020 comparative information has been reclassified where necessary to conform to the 
current year presentation. 
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15. Financial risks and concentration of risks: 

(a) Other risks: 

The Authority’s main sources of revenue are municipal levies, government operating grants 
and fees for services. In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by 
the World Health Organization. This resulted in the Canadian and Provincial governments 

enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus.  The Authority halted in-
person activity and closed its facilities to staff for a period of time and moved to delivery of 
essential services in a virtual environment based on recommendations from Public Health 

Ontario. In 2021, certain in person services restarted with the Authority currently utilizing a 
hybrid model for the delivery of services in compliance with Public Health regulations.  

In response to the adverse impact the pandemic has had on certain revenue streams, the 

Authority has undertaken certain cost cutting measures. The Federal government has 
provided financial relief in the form of grants totaling $740,879. 

The impact of COVID-19 is expected to negatively impact operations for a duration that cannot 

be reasonably predicted.  The further overall operational and financial impact is highly 
dependent on the duration of COVID-19, including the potential occurrence of additional 
waves of the pandemic, and could be affected by other factors that are currently not known at 

this time. Management is actively monitoring the effect of the pandemic on its financial 
condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the 
pandemic and the global responses to curb its spread, the Authority is not able to fully 

estimate the effects of the pandemic on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity 
at this time. 
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Schedule of Revenue

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020

2021 2020

Provincial government grants:
Ministry of Natural Resources - Flood operations $ 97,307       $ 97,305          
Source Water Protection Planning 214,810     214,975        
Other 15,207       -    
Nottawasaga Watershed Improvement Program 7,500         3,750            

Total provincial funding $ 334,824     $ 316,030        

Federal government grants $ 947,388     $ 174,295        

User fees:
 Planning $ 926,583     $ 783,306        

Environmental education 140,359     54,437          
Conservation lands 111,599     71,358          
Tiffin outreach 59,313       49,876          
Stewardship services 57,910       36,678          
GIS Technical Support 4,070         35 
Watershed science 2,600         10,855          
Healthy waters - 15,995
Office and occupancy - 4,779

$ 1,302,434  $ 1,027,319     

NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY
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03-22-BOD Minutes (DRAFT) 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 

Mar 25, 2022 at 9:00 AM EDT 
 
Attendance 
Members Present: 
Mayor Don  Allen, Springwater (Township); Cllr. Walter Benotto, Shelburne (Town); 
Cllr. Shirley Boxem, Mulmur (Township); Cllr. Gary Harvey, Barrie (City); Cllr. 
Donna Jebb, New Tecumseth (Town); Cllr. Cathy Keane, Oro-Medonte (Township);  
Vice-Chair Gail Little, Amaranth (Township); Cllr. Ralph Manktelow, Mono (Town); 
Cllr. Andrea Matrosovs, Blue Mountains (Town); Chair Mariane Mcleod, Collingwood 
(Town); Cllr. Margaret Mercer, Melancthon (Township); Cllr. Rob Nicol, Innisfil 
(Town); Cllr. Dane Nielsen, Grey Highlands (Municipality); Mayor Floyd Pinto, Adjala 
Tosorontio (Township); Cllr. Raj Sandhu, Bradford West Gwillimbury (Town); Cllr. 
George Watson, Wasaga Beach (Town) 

Members Absent: 
Cllr. Thom Paterson, Clearview (Township); Deputy Mayor Michael Smith, Essa 
(Township) 

NVCA Staff: 
Sheryl Flannagan, Director, Corporate Services; Doug Hevenor, Cheif Administrative 
Officer; Chris Hibberd, Director, Watershed Management Services; Byron Wesson, 
Director, Conservation Services; Naomi Saunders, Manager, Environmental 
Education (departed at 9:30am); Kyra Howes, Manager, Lands & Operations; Ben 
Krul, Manager, Plannign; Kerry Jenkins, Administrative Assistant/Recorder 
 

1. Events  

Please visit our website for more information at nvca.on.ca 
 
March Break Camp Tiffin 
Date: March 14 – 18, 2022 
Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
Tiffin Nature Program 
Date: Every Tuesday and Thursday from April 5 to June 23  
 
PA Day Camp 
Date: June 3, 2022 
Location: Tiffin Centre for Conservation 
 
Self-Guided Maple Syrup Tour 
Date: March 1 - April 15, 2022  



Location: Tiffin Conservation Area 
Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 
Date: April 2 – 3, 2022 
Location: Tiffin Conservation Area 

2. Call to Order  

Chair Mcleod called the meeting to order at 9:03am. 

3. Land Acknowledgement  

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority Board acknowledges that 
we are situated on the traditional land of the Anishinaabeg. The 
Anishinaabeg include the Odawa, Saulteaux, Anishinaabeg, Mississauga and 
Algonquin who spoke several languages including Anishinaabemowin and 
Potawatomi. We are dedicated to honouring Indigenous history and culture 
and committed to moving forward in the spirit of reconciliation and respect 
with all First Nation, Métis and Inuit people. 

4. Declaration of Pecuniary and Conflict of Interest  

5. Motion to Adopt the Agenda  

Recommendation: 
RES: 11-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Shirley Boxem 
Seconded by: Cllr. George Watson 
RESOLVED THAT: the agenda for the Board of Directors Meeting #03-22-
BOD dated March 25, 2022 be approved.     
  
Carried; 

6. Announcements  

There were no announcements.  

7. Presentations  

Kyra Howes, Manager, Lands & Operations to conduct a presentation 
regarding Community Engagement through Syrup Programs. 
Please see Agenda Item 12.2.3 Staff Report No. 07-03-22-BOD regarding 
the recommendation and vote. 

8. Deputations  

There were no deputations for this meeting. 

9. Hearings  

There were no hearings for this meeting. 

10. Determination of Items Requiring Separate Discussion  



Board Members are requested to identify items from the Consent List that 
they wish to have considered for separate discussion. 

11. Adoption of Consent List and Identification of Items Requiring 
Separate Discussion  

Recommendation: 
RES: 12-22 
Moved by: Mayor Don Allen 
Seconded by: Cllr. Donna Jebb 
RESOLVED THAT: agenda item number(s) 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 13 was 
identified as requiring separate discussion, be referred for discussion under 
Agenda Item #9; and 
FURTHER THAT: all Consent List Agenda Items not referred for separate 
discussion be adopted as submitted to the board and staff be authorized to 
take all necessary action required to give effect to same; and 
FURTHER THAT: any items in the Consent List not referred for separate 
discussion, and for which conflict has been declared, are deemed not to 
have been voted on or discussed by the individual making the declaration.
  
Carried; 

12. Consent List  

12.1. Adoption of Minutes  

Recommendation: 
Approved by Consent 
RESOLVED THAT: the minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting 02-
22-BOD dated on February 25, 2022 be approved.    
  
Carried; 

Staff Reports  

12.1.1. Staff Report No. 05-03-22-BOD from Kyra Howes, 
Manager, Lands & Operations  

Recommendation: 
Approved by Consent 
RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Directors receive Staff Report 
No. 05-03-22-BOD regarding the approval of the use of funds 
received from the Canada Community Revitalization Fund. 
  
Carried; 

12.1.2. Staff Report No. 06-03-22-BOD from Doug Hevenor, Chief 
Administrative Officer  

Recommendation: 
RES: 13-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Rob Nicol 



Seconded by: Cllr. Thom Paterson 
RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Directors approve Staff Report 
No. 06-03-22-BOD regarding an Update of the Inventory of 
Programs and Services      
  
Carried; 

12.1.3. Staff Report No. 07-03-22-BOD from Kyra Howes, 
Manager, Lands & Operations  

Recommendation: 
Approved by Consent 
RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Directors receive Staff Report 
No. 07-03-22-BOD regarding the integrated partnership for 
community engagement through maple syrup programming be 
received.        
  
Carried; 

12.1.4. Staff Report No. 08-03-22-BOD from Ben Krul, Manager, 
Planning  

Recommendation: 
RES:14-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Margaret Mercer 
Seconded by: Mayor Don Allen 
RESOLVED THAT: the NVCA Board of Directors receive Staff 
Report No. 08-03-22-BOD regarding planning and permitting 
review staffing.       
  
Carried; 

12.1.5. Staff Report No. 09-03-22-BOD from Maria Leung, 
Communications Coordinator  

Recommendation: 
Approved by Consent 
RESOLVED THAT: Staff Report No. 09-03-22-BOD regarding 
NVCA’s Customer Satisfaction Report 2021 be received by 
Board of Directors.       
  
Carried; 

12.1.6. Staff Report No. 10-03-22-BOD from Maria Leung, 
Communication Coordinator  

Recommendation: 
Approved by Consent 
RESOLVED THAT: Staff Report No. 10-03-22-BOD regarding 
NVCA Communications – February 12, 2022 – March 11, 2022, 
be received.         



Carried; 

13. Discussion of Previous Notice of Motion  

Recommendation: 
RES: 15-22 
Moved by; Cllr. Dane Nielsen 
Seconded by: Cllr. Andrea Matrosovs 
RESOLVED THAT: item 13 be deferred to the April 22, 2022 Board 
Meeting.          
  
Carried; 

14. Other Business  

There was no other business. 

15. In-Camera – Board decided there was no need to go in-camera and 
proceeded with below resolution 

Recommendation: 
RES: 16-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Ralph Manktelow 
Seconded by: Cllr. Rob Nicol 
B). RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Directors receive the Chief 
Administrative Officer's 2021 annual performance review and 2022 review 
for implementation.        
  
Carried; 

16. Adjourn  

Recommendation: 
RES:17-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Donna Jebb 
Seconded by: Cllr. Walter Benotto 
RESOLVED THAT: this meeting adjourn at 10:16am to meet again on April 
22, 2022 or at the call of the Chair.       
  
Carried; 

 



01-22-AAC Minutes (DRAFT) 
Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 

Mar 31, 2022 at 10:00 AM EDT 
 
Attendance 
Members Present: 
Cllr. Donna Jebb, NVCA Member 
Cllr. Gail Little, NVCA Member (Dufferin County FA Representative) 
Cllr. Dane Nielsen, NVCA Member 
Chair, Colin Elliott, North Simcoe Soil and Crop Assoc. 
Dave Ritchie, President, SCFA 
Dave Spring, Spring Fally Farms Inc.  

Members Absent: 
Vice-Chair, Hugh Simpson, Grey County FA 
Ted Woods, Presdient, Christian Farmers Assoc. 
NVCA Staff: 
Doug Hevenor, Cheif Administrative Officer 
Chris Hibberd, Director, Watershed Management Services 
Byron Wesson, Director, Conservation Services 
Kerry Jenkins, Administrative Assistant/Recorder 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair, Colin Elliott called the meeting to order at 10:08am. 

2. MOTION TO ADPOT THE AGENDA 

Recommendation: 
RES: 01-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Donna Jebb 
Seconded by: Cllr. Gail Little 
RESOLVED THAT: the agenda for the Agricultural Advisory Committee 01-
22-AAC dated March 31, 2022 be approved. 
Carried;       

3. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

None declared. 

4. REVIEW OF MINUTES 

The minutes were approved by the Board of Directors on August 27, 2021. 



5. DISCUSSIONS ON ELECTIONS/APPOINTMENT OF NEW MEMBERS 

Chair, Colin Elliott voted in Dave Spring, Spring Valley Farms Inc to join the 
Committee. Dave Spring accepted.  

6. CONSERVATION AUTHORITIES CORE MANDATES 

Doug Hevenor, CAO went over the recent changes to the 
Conservation Authorities Act. 

Discussion Ensued 

7. AGRICULTURAL REPRESENTATIVE 

Byron Wesson, Director, Conservation Services went over the MECP 
Agricultural Representative.  
 
Discussion Ensued 

8. NVCA’S 5 YEAR STRATEGIC PLAN 

Chris Hibberd, Director, Watershed Management Services went over 
NVCA’s 5 Year Strategic Plan. 

Discussion Ensued 

9. COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Doug Hevenor, CAO went over the Terms of  Reference 

Discussion Ensued 

10. TENTATIVE 2022 MEETING DATES 

The committee decided to meet for the 2nd quarter on Thursday June 30th, 
2022 and to select a 3rd and 4th quarter at a later date. 

11. OTHER BUSINESS 

Chair, Colin Elloitt requested for Other Business to be included in all AAC 
agendas going forward. 

Doug Hevenor, CAO requested to everyone in the committee to inform NVCA 
staff one week prior to the meeting if changes need to be made to the 
agenda.  

12. ADJOURN 

Recommendation: 
RES:02-22 
Moved by: Cllr. Donna Jebb 



Seconded by: Dave Sprig 
RESOLVED THAT: this meeting adjourn at 11:29am and to meet again on 
June 30, 2022 or at the call of the Chair. 
Carried; 

 



 
 

 

Staff Report: 11-04-22-BOD 
 
Date: 22/04/2022 
 
To: Chair and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
From:  Sheryl Flannagan 
 Director, Corporate Services 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Employee Handbook Update 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
RESOLVED THAT:  the Board of Directors approve Staff Report No. 11-04-22-
BOD regarding the Employee Handbook Update. 
 
 
Purpose of the Staff Report 
 
The purpose of this Staff Report is to update the Employee Handbook for the Board 
of Directors approval. 
 
Background 
 
The Board of Directors approved the NVCA Employee Handbook in November 2014.  
Since that time, updates have been completed and approved by the Board. It is now 
noted that a new policy and an update to a previous policy is required. 
 
Issues/Analysis 
 
Staff are recommending three changes to the employee handbook all around OMERS 
and benefits for all non-permanent full-time employees.  The benefits sections would 
come into effect effective immediately and the OMERS changes would come into 
effect as of January 1st, 2023, as per OMERS Primary Pension Plan (Plan) changes. 
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The first is to the current section 3.2 Other than Permanent Full-Time Staff. One part 
of this section states: 
 
Benefits 
Contract staff are not eligible for benefits, except those benefits which are 
mandated by provincial and/or federal legislation – with the following 
exceptions: 
 

• a 12-month contract can receive 2 weeks’ vacation days in lieu of the 4% 
entitlement 

• if the employee has met the requirements for OMERS eligibility then they will 
be enrolled in OMERS 

• PPT staff who have met the eligibility requirements for OMERS membership 
will be enrolled in OMERS and will receive benefits once enrolled in OMERS as 
described in the Benefits section. 

 
Effective January 1, 2023, all employees will be eligible for OMERS regardless of 
their status as an employee as per a change with OMERS Plan.  They no longer must 
meet the 700 hours for 2 consecutive years requirement and are eligible upon hire.  
Combined with this extra expense placed on the NVCA, and the increasing costs of 
benefits, staff are recommending the removal of the 3rd bullet point, removing 
benefits as an option for contract staff all together.  Therefore, the new section would 
read: 
 
Benefits 
Contract staff are not eligible for benefits, except those benefits which are 
mandated by provincial and/or federal legislation – with the following 
exceptions: 
 

• a 12-month contract can receive 2 weeks’ vacation days in lieu of the 4% 
entitlement 

• if the employee has decided to enroll in OMERS, they will be enrolled upon 
hire, effective January 1, 2023 as per OMERS Plan and section 4.13 of this 
handbook. 

 
The second is a section 4.12 Health, Dental, Life Insurance and Disability Benefits.  
It has the following section in it: 
 
Permanent Full-Time Employees:  

• You are a permanent employee; 
• You are actively working for the NVCA; 
• You are eligible for all benefits as per the contract with SunLife  
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All Other Employees: 
Only permanent part-time employees who have met the requirements for 
membership with OMERS will be eligible for health & dental benefits at the time 
OMERS membership begins, this excludes Life Insurance and Disability Coverage.  
No other employees are eligible for benefits. 
 
Staff are recommending the addition of “full-time” to the permanent full-time 
employees first bullet point and the removal of All Other Employees section as per 
the increasing costs stated previously so the new section would be: 
 
Permanent Full-Time Employees:  

• You are a permanent full-time employee; 
• You are actively working for the NVCA; 
• You are eligible for all benefits as per the contract with SunLife 

 
No other employees are eligible for benefits. 
 
Thirdly, is section 4.13 Pension Plans. Currently it states: 
 
OMERS (Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Savings Plan) 
Eligibility 
Any new permanent full-time employee hired will be required to join the plan as a 
condition of employment.  For all other employees, they are eligible to join the plan 
upon completing a minimum of 700 hours of service per year for a minimum of two 
years, calculated each December 31st, or who have earned at least 35% of the 
year's maximum pensionable earnings as defined in the Canada Pension Plan, for 
those two consecutive years. 
 
Staff are recommending the following change due to the change in OMERS eligibility 
effective January 1, 2023, based on the changes in the OMERS Plan: 
 
OMERS (Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Savings Plan) 
Eligibility 
Any new permanent full-time employee hired will be required to join the plan as a 
condition of employment.   
For all other employees, the employee is eligible to join upon hire, or at any time 
during their employment.  Once registered with OMERS, they would remain on 
OMERS as long as they continue working with the NVCA, no ability to opt out. 



Employee Handbook Update 
Staff Report No. 11-04-22-BOD 
 
 
Enrolment in OMERS would take effect on the first day of the month after the 
employee’s election is received or upon hire, depending on when election is decided. 
 
Relevance to Authority Policy/Mandate 
 
Good employment policies are critical and essential for operating under the 
Conservation Authorities Act.  
 
Impact on Authority Finances 
 
Staff time to prepare this report is addressed in the 2022 budget. 
 
Reviewed by: Approved for submission by: 
Original Signed by Original Signed by  
Sheryl Flannagan Doug Hevenor 
Director, Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 



 
 
Staff Report: 12-04-22-BOD 
 
Date: 22/04/2022 
 
To: Chair and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
From:  Sheryl Flannagan 
 Director, Corporate Services 
 
 
SUBJECT:  2022 First Quarter Budget Report 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
RESOLVED THAT: the Board of Directors receive Staff Report No. 12-04-22-
BOD regarding the 2022 first quarter financials; and 
 
FURTHER THAT: staff continue to monitor budget activities. 
 
 
Purpose of the Staff Report 
 
The purpose of this Staff Report is to provide quarterly information to the Board 
regarding the status of the budget activities. 
 
Background 
 
On December 10, 2021 the Board approved the NVCA’s 2022 budget. Quarterly 
reports are given to the Board to update on the status of the budget activities and 
any variations expected. 
 
Issues/Analysis 

The following are the highlights for the first 3 months of operations of the NVCA: 
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• Expenditures to date are tracking behind schedule, with 16.25% of the 
budgeted expenses (25% of budget year completed), partially because 
expenses are usually low for the first few months of the year.   

• Revenues are tracking well, with 21.52% of the budgeted revenues 
recognized. This includes the first 3 months of the general municipal levy of 
$651,192. 

• Currently, the NVCA is sitting in a surplus position, primarily due to two 
reasons:  

1. Revenues are tracking higher than expenses currently 
2. There was a large payroll accrual in 2021 due to the timing of the last 

payroll and a larger than normal vacation accrual which when reversed 
in 2022, causes our payroll expenses to show lower than normal but 
will be caught up as the year moves forward. 

 
Individual Program Updates 
 
Conservation Services: 
Forestry 110 
• Forests Ontario has confirmed that the 50 Million Tree Program will be available 

for 2023.  
• Landowner interest in tree planting is strong and well over 20 inquiries for 

2023 planting have been received to date.  
• The 2021 plant is expected to start the week of April 25th and be completed 

May 25th. The 2022 season will see the planting of 115,150 trees on 23 
properties. 

• After a 2-year COVID hiatus the Arbour Day Tree Sale will return to the NVCA 
on May 14. 

• All expenses are on track and staff anticipate a balanced budget for 2022. 
 
Conservation Lands – 150  
• Visitors to conservation areas is trending lower than the past two years, 

however conservation lands pass sales are still trending higher than pre-
pandemic levels.  

• Annual hunting passes for NVCA properties have sold out in the first quarter. 
The 100 passes are available to watershed and non-watershed residents.  

• A balanced budget is anticipated for years end. 
 

Tiffin CA – 661 
• NVCA hosted the first Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival since 2019. The 

financials are still being tallied; however it is anticipated that 2022 will be the 
highest revenue festival ever, surpassing even 2019’s very successful event.  

• Interviews are underway to fill staffing gaps within the program. Staff wages 
have been accounted for within the board approved 2022 budget.  
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• Staff have received funding support for infrastructure development from 
FedDev Canada. The financial impact will be reflected in the second quarter 
budget. 

• Rescheduled events from 2020 & 2021 are anticipated to take place as planned 
throughout 2022. Staff are continuing to secure additional external bookings 
for weddings, camping and events to fill any available gaps in the schedule.  

• Program expenditures will continue to be monitored to ensure a balanced 
budget for 2022. 

 
Corporate Workshop-Vehicle and equipment – 650 

• The 2022 capital assets budget included the replacement of the 1989 John 
Deere tractor. A public RFQ process has resulted in the purchase of a 
replacement compact tractor to be delivered second quarter.   

• Currently, there are no unanticipated expenses and staff anticipate a 
balanced budget. 

 
Healthy Waters – 120 

• Staffing revenue generated in the 1st quarter of 2022 was on-track. 
• New funding commitments from World Wildlife Foundation and the Forests 

Ontario Grasslands Program have been secured and will provide significant 
program funding for the rest of 2022 and beyond. 

• Staff delivery dollars linked to 2022 field projects including spring tree 
planting, Nottawasaga River Restoration, grasslands restoration and Pine 
River restoration plan development and Midhurst Phosphorus Offsets 
Scoping, will provide support to the Healthy Waters budget. 

• Staff are still waiting to receive feedback on several funding applications 
submitted this past winter but are confident for a balanced budget. 
 

Tiffin Education – 630  
• We continue working with the SCDSB (through our ongoing contract) as we 

move back to providing programming in-person and on-site at the Tiffin 
Centre for round 3. There are a few more outreach visits to complete to 
finish up round 2, and only 1 class is participating in a remote lesson (as 
opposed to 6 last year)   

• Through funding from Georgian Bay Forever (GBF) we aim to book outreach 
programs in May and June for Collingwood and Wasaga Beach, bringing in 
$8,000.  

• A new request from GBF is a remote lesson on water quality for 10 
community groups in Collingwood and Wasaga Beach to initiate those groups 
to participate in the Yellow Fish Road Program. This is a community-based 
program which aims to raise awareness about the importance of only rain 
going down storm drains because they directly connect to lakes and 
rivers.  It gives local residents information on the proper disposal of 
household hazardous waste. 
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• Summer Camp Tiffin is 70% sold if we can only take 50 campers a week 
(total revenue will be $86,000 less wages) and 60% sold if we can take 60 
campers a week (total revenue will be $103,200 less wages)   

• A balanced budget is expected for end 2022. 
 
Watershed Management: 
 
Planning – 310 

• Planning Services user fee revenues as of March 31 are approximately 
$184,881 (excluding levy, federal funds and reserve use).  

• Based on the revenues received to date, the user fee revenues for 
subdivisions are currently trending lower than anticipated for the first quarter. 

• Revenues for legal inquiries, section 28 permits and consents/minor variances 
are currently trending higher than anticipated for the year end. 

• The program expenditures are currently trending as budgeted, however staff 
anticipate higher values in the remainder of the year due to increased 
enforcement activity and legal fees. 

• Staff anticipates a balanced budget for the end of the year.   

Engineering- 400 
• The Engineering cost center is used to track engineering special projects.  
• An application has been submitted to the NDMP for the Pretty River Flood 

Conveyance Improvement project. This project is financially supported by the 
Town of Collingwood for 2021-2022. 

• The NVCA has been awarded a contract with the City of Barrie to maintain 
their rain gauge network. 
 

Watershed Science - 420 
• This program incorporates Source Water Protection, Risk Management Office, 

Environmental Monitoring and Natural Heritage. 
• Overall, the program at the end of Q1 is presently in a strong surplus 

position; however, is anticipating a neutral budget at year end. 
• Delivery of the Risk Management Official program continues to be adversely 

impacted by COVID-19 and associated revenue generation.  The reduction in 
Risk Management Official revenue has been offset by increases Source Water 
Protection revenue. 

• Additional revenue is recognized through the completion of a special 
benefitting project wit the Town of Collingwood. 

 
Flood Program - 430-440 

• Flood has issued 3 flood messages this year to date (2 water safety and 1 
watershed conditions/flood outlook) in addition to the annual Spring Safety 
message that was issued on March 11, 2022.   

• The Tottenham Dam Safety Review has been completed.  Recommendations 
are being reviewed. 



 
2022 First Quarter Budget Report 
Staff Report No. 12-04-22-BOD 
 

  

• The actual year to date expenses are tracking below budget but are expected 
to match budget year to date by year end. 

 
Corporate Services:  GIS/IT 410/Governance 670/Admin 660/680 

GIS/Tech support - 410 
• Current revenues and expenditures are tracking as anticipated. 
• A slight surplus is anticipated at this time. 

 
Governance 670 

• Expenses are tracking lower than the approved budget due to no mileage 
payments this quarter due to digital meetings.  

• A slight surplus is anticipated at this time. 
 
Corporate Admin 660 & 680 

• Staff and administrative expenditures are tracking below anticipated values. 
• A small surplus is anticipated at this time. 

 
Impact on Authority Finances 

The 2022 Approved Budget totals $5,095,130 in revenue as compared to the 2021 
approved budget of $4,949,422. Additionally, staff time to prepare this report is 
addressed in the 2022 budget. 
 
Reviewed by:  Approved for submission by: 
Original Signed by Original Signed by  
Sheryl Flannagan Doug Hevenor 
Director, Corporate Services Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Attachments: 

1. March 31, 2022 Statement of Operations 



  

                                               
                                                                                       
                                                                     
                                                                                       
                                                               
                                     

                                    
                                    

                                          
                                          

                                                                                            
                                                                 
                                                    
                                                                                     
                                                                           
                                                                                     
                                                                                            
                                             

                                  

                                              

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 110 Reforestation 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 
Municipal Grants 
Contributions 
Federal Sources 
User Fees 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

18,980.91 
-

569.69 
-

6,300.00 
25,850.60 

18,980.91 
-
-
-
-

18,980.91 

18,980.91 
-

569.69 
-

6,300.00 
25,850.60 

18,980.91 
-
-
-
-

18,980.91 

-
-

569.69 
-

6,300.00 
6,869.69 

75,923.65 
13,000.00 

240,640.00 
17,000.00 
71,000.00

417,563.65 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 22,192.25 

22,192.25 
32,021.06 
32,021.06 

22,192.25 
22,192.25 

32,021.06 
32,021.06 

(9,828.81) 
(9,828.81) 

128,084.23 
128,084.23

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 6,484.02 

6,484.02 
10,582.36 
10,582.36 

6,484.02 
6,484.02 

10,582.36 
10,582.36 

(4,098.34) 
(4,098.34) 

42,329.42 
42,329.42

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 110 
Memberships Prof.Dues 110 
Material&Supply 110 
Cost of Trees 110 
Equipment Costs 110 Reforestation 
Consultant Fees 110 Outsource Cont 
Uniform & Special Clothing Expense 

-
820.00 

2,966.50 
-
-
-
-

3,786.50 

-
450.00 

2,000.00 
-

250.00 
-
-

2,700.00 

-
820.00 

2,966.50 
-
-
-
-

3,786.50 

-
450.00 

2,000.00 
-

250.00 
-
-

2,700.00 

-
370.00 
966.50 

-
(250.00) 

-
-

1,086.50 

300.00 
750.00 

6,500.00 
124,000.00 

500.00 
115,000.00 

100.00 
247,150.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

32,462.77 45,303.42 32,462.77 45,303.42 (12,840.65) 417,563.65 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (6,612.17) (26,322.51) (6,612.17) (26,322.51) 19,710.34 -



  

                                             
                                                              
                                                                                         
                                    
                                    
                                                              
                                                                                         
                            

                                    
                                    

                                          
                                          

                                                                    
                                    
                                                                                         
                                                                                            
                                                                        
                                    

                            

                                                                 

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 120 Healthy Waters 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 
Provincial Grants 
Municipal Grants 
Contributions 
Federal Sources 
User Fees 
Use of Reserves 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

42,033.11 
-
-

59,198.17 
74,763.55 

-
-

175,994.83 

42,033.11 
5,000.00 

-
21,000.00 
35,000.00 
5,000.00 

-
108,033.11 

42,033.11 
-
-

59,198.17 
74,763.55 

-
-

175,994.83 

42,033.11 
5,000.00 

-
21,000.00 
35,000.00 
5,000.00 

-
108,033.11 

-
(5,000.00) 

-
38,198.17 
39,763.55 
(5,000.00) 

-
67,961.72 

178,132.44 
80,000.00 
6,000.00 

212,300.00 
106,000.00 
20,000.00 
1,000.00

603,432.44 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 67,111.72 

67,111.72 
72,890.15 
72,890.15 

67,111.72 
67,111.72 

72,890.15 
72,890.15 

(5,778.43) 
(5,778.43) 

291,560.60 
291,560.60

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 8,054.56 

8,054.56 
16,080.46 
16,080.46 

8,054.56 
8,054.56 

16,080.46 
16,080.46 

(8,025.90) 
(8,025.90) 

64,321.84 
64,321.84

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 120 Healthy Waters 
Material&Supply 120 
Equipment Costs 120 
Uniform & Special Clothing Expense 
Advertisement 120 

58.28 
57,890.45 

-
-
-

57,948.73 

200.00 
18,462.50 

-
-

400.00 
19,062.50 

58.28 
57,890.45 

-
-
-

57,948.73 

200.00 
18,462.50 

-
-

400.00 
19,062.50 

(141.72) 
39,427.95 

-
-

(400.00) 
38,886.23 

800.00 
244,000.00 

1,000.00 
150.00 

1,600.00 
247,550.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

133,115.01 108,033.11 133,115.01 108,033.11 25,081.90 603,432.44 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 42,879.82 0.00 42,879.82 0.00 42,879.82 -



  

                                             
                                                                                         
                                                                
                                                                         
                                      
                                                                                        
                                    

                               
                               

                                          
                                          

                                                                                            
                                               
                                                                                         
                                                     
                                              
                                                                            
                                                             
                                                                                            
                                                                                         
                                      

                                      

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 150 Conservation Lands 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 35,589.75 35,589.75 35,589.75 35,589.75 - 142,358.99 
Provincial Grants - - - - - 2,500.00 
Contributions 224.25 200.00 224.25 200.00 24.25 5,000.00 
Federal Sources 3,052.80 - 3,052.80 - 3,052.80 -
User Fees 20,691.10 10,100.00 20,691.10 10,100.00 10,591.10 61,040.00 
Use of Reserves - - - - - (9,800.00)

 TOTAL REVENU

E 59,557.90 45,889.75 59,557.90 45,889.75 13,668.15 201,098.99 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges (16,383.60) 26,175.49 (16,383.60) 26,175.49 (42,559.09) 104,701.94 

(16,383.60) 26,175.49 (16,383.60) 26,175.49 (42,559.09) 104,701.94

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 8,543.74 12,979.26 8,543.74 12,979.26 (4,435.52) 51,917.05 

8,543.74 12,979.26 8,543.74 12,979.26 (4,435.52) 51,917.05

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 150 Conservation Lan - - - - - 400.00 
Material&Supply 3,188.38 1,000.00 3,188.38 1,000.00 2,188.38 10,000.00 
Legal Costs 150 - - - - - 1,000.00 
Insurance 150 2,021.94 2,075.00 2,021.94 2,075.00 (53.06) 8,300.00 
Taxes 6,079.01 9,330.00 6,079.01 9,330.00 (3,250.99) 18,660.00 
Hydro 150 44.57 50.00 44.57 50.00 (5.43) 200.00 
Interest & Bank Chgs Lands 382.62 625.00 382.62 625.00 (242.38) 2,500.00 
Maintenance Supplies 150 - - - - - 500.00 
Advertisement 150 - - - - - 2,920.00 

11,716.52 13,080.00 11,716.52 13,080.00 (1,363.48) 44,480.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

3,876.66 52,234.75 3,876.66 52,234.75 (48,358.09) 201,098.99 



   

                                                 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 150 Conservation Lands 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 
55,681.24 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 
(6,345.00) 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

55,681.24 

BUDGET 
YTD 

(6,345.00) 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

62,026.24 

BUDGET 
2022 

-



  

                                     
                          
                                                                                 
                       

                     
                     

                                  
                                  

                                                                           
                                                   
                                                                           
                                               
                                                                        
                                                 
                                                                           
                                                                           
                                          

                     

                                           

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 310 Planning 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 
User Fees 
Miscellaneous Revenue 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

110,089.10 
184,431.24 

450.62 
294,970.96 

110,089.10 
198,750.00 

-
308,839.10 

110,089.10 
184,431.24 

450.62 
294,970.96 

110,089.10 
198,750.00 

-
308,839.10 

-
(14,318.76) 

450.62 
(13,868.14) 

440,356.41 
978,000.00 

-
1,418,356.41 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 178,161.59 

178,161.59 
286,149.88 
286,149.88 

178,161.59 
178,161.59 

286,149.88 
286,149.88 

(107,988.29) 
(107,988.29) 

1,144,599.51 
1,144,599.51

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 23,712.59 53,089.23 23,712.59 53,089.23 (29,376.64) 212,356.90 

23,712.59 53,089.23 23,712.59 53,089.23 (29,376.64) 212,356.90

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 310 - 125.00 - 125.00 (125.00) 500.00 
Memberships Prof.Dues 310 4,267.98 4,600.00 4,267.98 4,600.00 (332.02) 4,600.00 
Material&Supply 310 - 100.00 - 100.00 (100.00) 500.00 
Legal Costs 8,605.28 5,750.00 8,605.28 5,750.00 2,855.28 20,000.00 
Consultant Fees 310 - 625.00 - 625.00 (625.00) 2,500.00 
Insurance 310 E&OLiability Premium 7,355.31 8,075.00 7,355.31 8,075.00 (719.69) 32,300.00 
Office Expenses - 125.00 - 125.00 (125.00) 500.00 
Bad Debt Expense 310 Planning - 125.00 - 125.00 (125.00) 500.00 

20,228.57 19,525.00 20,228.57 19,525.00 703.57 61,400.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

222,102.75 358,764.11 222,102.75 358,764.11 (136,661.36) 1,418,356.41 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 72,868.21 (49,925.01) 72,868.21 (49,925.01) 122,793.22 -

https://122,793.22
https://49,925.01
https://72,868.21
https://49,925.01
https://72,868.21
https://1,418,356.41
https://136,661.36
https://358,764.11
https://222,102.75
https://358,764.11
https://222,102.75


  

                                                                                 
                                                                         
                                                                         

                                                                                                 

                                                                                                 

                                                                         
                                                                         

                                                                         

                                                                                                 

 

- - - - - -

- - - - - -

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 400 Engineering - Special Projects 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Grants 
Use of Reserves 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

296.73 
4,007.31 
4,304.04 

-
-
-

296.73 
4,007.31 
4,304.04 

-
-
-

296.73 
4,007.31 
4,304.04 

-
-
-

EXPENSES: 

Other Interpro
gram Charges 

Other Expenses Material&Supply 400 4,304.04 - 4,304.04 - 4,304.04 -
4,304.04 - 4,304.04 - 4,304.04 -

TOTAL EXPENSES 

4,304.04 - 4,304.04 - 4,304.04 -

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) - - - - - -



  

                                             
                                                                    
                                        
                                    

                                  
                                  

                                                           
                                                           

                                                                            
                                               
                                                                
                                        
                                        

                                  

                                                                    

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 410 GIS/Tech Support 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 
User Fees 
Use of Reserves 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

68,852.55 
22,123.89 
2,110.86 

93,087.30 

68,852.55 
-

14,000.00 
82,852.55 

68,852.55 
22,123.89 
2,110.86 

93,087.30 

68,852.55 
-

14,000.00 
82,852.55 

-
22,123.89 

(11,889.14) 
10,234.75 

275,410.20 
-

28,500.00
303,910.20 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 46,094.78 

46,094.78 
68,852.55 
68,852.55 

46,094.78 
46,094.78 

68,852.55 
68,852.55 

(22,757.77) 
(22,757.77) 

275,410.20 
275,410.20

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery - (5,525.00) - (5,525.00) 5,525.00 (29,600.00) 

- (5,525.00) - (5,525.00) 5,525.00 (29,600.00)

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 410 GIS 18.06 25.00 18.06 25.00 (6.94) 100.00 
Material&Supply 410 4,578.97 3,500.00 4,578.97 3,500.00 1,078.97 21,500.00 
Consultant Fees 410 - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 8,000.00 
Capital Asset Purchases 2,110.86 14,000.00 2,110.86 14,000.00 (11,889.14) 28,500.00 

6,707.89 19,525.00 6,707.89 19,525.00 (12,817.11) 58,100.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

52,802.67 82,852.55 52,802.67 82,852.55 (30,049.88) 303,910.20 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 40,284.63 - 40,284.63 - 40,284.63 -

https://40,284.63
https://40,284.63
https://40,284.63
https://303,910.20
https://30,049.88
https://82,852.55
https://52,802.67
https://82,852.55
https://52,802.67


  

                                             
                                    
                                          
                                                                         
                                                         
                                                              
                            

                                  
                                  

                                    
                                    

                                                                 
                                                                                         
                                                    
                                                                
                                                               
                                                                                         
                                                              
                                              

                              

                                                 

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 420 Watershed Science 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 58,366.64 58,366.64 58,366.64 58,366.64 - 233,466.55 
Provincial Grants 75,915.61 47,500.00 75,915.61 47,500.00 28,415.61 190,000.00 
Municipal Grants 5,000.00 10,000.00 5,000.00 10,000.00 (5,000.00) 39,000.00 
Contributions 1,011.79 - 1,011.79 - 1,011.79 -
User Fees 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 
Use of Reserves - 2,100.00 - 2,100.00 (2,100.00) 38,625.00

 TOTAL REVENU

E 141,294.04 118,966.64 141,294.04 118,966.64 22,327.40 502,091.55 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 68,122.77 88,958.58 68,122.77 88,958.58 (20,835.81) 355,834.33 

68,122.77 88,958.58 68,122.77 88,958.58 (20,835.81) 355,834.33

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 11,852.69 22,733.06 11,852.69 22,733.06 (10,880.37) 90,932.22 

11,852.69 22,733.06 11,852.69 22,733.06 (10,880.37) 90,932.22

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 420 10.44 625.00 10.44 625.00 (614.56) 2,500.00 
Memberships Prof.Dues 420 - - - - - 1,000.00 
Material&Supply 420 1,590.49 1,500.00 1,590.49 1,500.00 90.49 13,500.00 
Consultant Fees 420 - 1,250.00 - 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 5,000.00 
Insurance 420 Water Source Prot En 396.30 425.00 396.30 425.00 (28.70) 1,700.00 
Maintenance Supplies 420 Equipmen - - - - - 3,425.00 
Capital Asset Purchases - 2,100.00 - 2,100.00 (2,100.00) 28,200.00 

1,997.23 5,900.00 1,997.23 5,900.00 (3,902.77) 55,325.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

81,972.69 117,591.64 81,972.69 117,591.64 (35,618.95) 502,091.55 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 59,321.35 1,375.00 59,321.35 1,375.00 57,946.35 (0.00) 



                                             
                                             
                                                                                       
                                                                
                                                      
                              

                                    
                                    

                                              
                                              

                                              
                                                   
                                                       
                                                             
                                                        
                                      

                              

                                              

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Consolidated 
From Division 430 Flood Control Structures 
To Division 442 4.8 Administration 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 32,742.09 32,742.09 32,742.09 32,742.09 - 130,968.37 
Matching Municipal Levy (Flood) 24,326.75 24,326.76 24,326.75 24,326.76 (0.01) 97,307.00 
Provincial Grants - - - - - 97,307.00 
Municipal Grants - 2,000.00 - 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 2,000.00 
Use of Reserves - 44,000.00 - 44,000.00 (44,000.00) 114,000.00

 TOTAL REVENU

E 57,068.84 103,068.85 57,068.84 103,068.85 (46,000.01) 441,582.37 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 53,636.37 60,493.98 53,636.37 60,493.98 (6,857.61) 241,975.87 

53,636.37 60,493.98 53,636.37 60,493.98 (6,857.61) 241,975.87

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 4,078.26 9,983.73 4,078.26 9,983.73 (5,905.47) 39,934.90 

4,078.26 9,983.73 4,078.26 9,983.73 (5,905.47) 39,934.90

 Other Expenses 
Material&Supply 1,359.63 9,000.00 1,359.63 9,000.00 (7,640.37) 84,500.00 
Corp Fleet Charge 437 1,953.65 2,467.90 1,953.65 2,467.90 (514.25) 9,871.60 
Insurance 3,150.00 3,150.00 3,150.00 3,150.00 - 12,600.00 
Taxes 424.32 600.00 424.32 600.00 (175.68) 1,200.00 
Capital Asset Purchases - 39,000.00 - 39,000.00 (39,000.00) 51,500.00 

6,887.60 54,217.90 6,887.60 54,217.90 (47,330.30) 159,671.60

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

64,602.23 124,695.61 64,602.23 124,695.61 (60,093.38) 441,582.37 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (7,533.39) (21,626.76) (7,533.39) (21,626.76) 14,093.37 -

https://14,093.37
https://21,626.76
https://7,533.39
https://21,626.76
https://7,533.39
https://441,582.37
https://60,093.38
https://124,695.61
https://64,602.23
https://124,695.61
https://64,602.23


  

                                                       
                                                         
                                                                                         
                                      
                                  

                                    
                                    

                                              
                                              

                                                                           
                                                                
                                                             

                                  

                                             

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 630 Tiffin Education 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 
Contributions 
Federal Sources 
User Fees 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

6,336.54 
1,125.00 

-
9,513.82 

16,975.36 

6,336.54 
500.00 

-
25,600.00 
32,436.54 

6,336.54 
1,125.00 

-
9,513.82 

16,975.36 

6,336.54 
500.00 

-
25,600.00 
32,436.54 

-
625.00 

-
(16,086.18) 
(15,461.18) 

25,346.16 
4,000.00 
2,100.00 

148,950.00
180,396.16 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 25,320.33 

25,320.33 
35,192.86 
35,192.86 

25,320.33 
25,320.33 

35,192.86 
35,192.86 

(9,872.53) 
(9,872.53) 

140,771.42 
140,771.42

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 3,755.06 8,531.19 3,755.06 8,531.19 (4,776.13) 34,124.74 

3,755.06 8,531.19 3,755.06 8,531.19 (4,776.13) 34,124.74

 Other Expenses 
Memberships Prof.Dues 630 - 250.00 - 250.00 (250.00) 500.00 
Material&Supply 630 511.67 500.00 511.67 500.00 11.67 5,000.00 

511.67 750.00 511.67 750.00 (238.33) 5,500.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

29,587.06 44,474.05 29,587.06 44,474.05 (14,886.99) 180,396.16 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (12,611.70) (12,037.51) (12,611.70) (12,037.51) (574.19) -

https://12,037.51
https://12,611.70
https://12,037.51
https://12,611.70
https://180,396.16
https://14,886.99
https://44,474.05
https://29,587.06
https://44,474.05
https://29,587.06


  

                                                                                       
                                                                                       

                                               
                                               

                              
                              

                                                              
                                                                                            
                                                 
                                                             
                                                             
                                              
                                                                                            
                                                                                         
                                              
                                                                                       
                                        

                                                                                       

                                                                                                

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 650 Corp-Workshop,Vehicle&Equip 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 
Use of Reserves - - - - - 39,000.00

 TOTAL REVENU

E - - - - - 39,000.00 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 19,893.22 19,893.22 19,893.22 19,893.22 - 79,572.89 

19,893.22 19,893.22 19,893.22 19,893.22 - 79,572.89

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery (27,909.29) (32,355.72) (27,909.29) (32,355.72) 4,446.43 (141,022.89) 

(27,909.29) (32,355.72) (27,909.29) (32,355.72) 4,446.43 (141,022.89)

 Other Expenses 
Material&Supply 650 Wkshp 573.55 250.00 573.55 250.00 323.55 1,000.00 
Equipment Costs 650 - - - - - 500.00 
Insurance Corp 650 2,365.09 2,612.50 2,365.09 2,612.50 (247.41) 10,450.00 
Hydro 650 Workshop 304.81 600.00 304.81 600.00 (295.19) 2,300.00 
Fuel Oil Heating Propane Wksp 496.68 700.00 496.68 700.00 (203.32) 2,500.00 
Maintenance Supplies 650 2,978.93 6,000.00 2,978.93 6,000.00 (3,021.07) 20,750.00 
Uniform & Special Clothing Exp 650 - - - - - 250.00 
Licence Vehicle - - - - - 1,500.00 
Gas & Oil 650 1,297.01 2,300.00 1,297.01 2,300.00 (1,002.99) 22,200.00 
Capital Asset Purchases - - - - - 39,000.00 

8,016.07 12,462.50 8,016.07 12,462.50 (4,446.43) 100,450.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

- - - - - 39,000.00 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) - - - - - 0.00 



  

                                                                                                 

                                                                                                 

                              
                              

                                                    
                                                                
                                         
                                                             
                                                 
                                                  
                                              
                                                        
                                                 
                                                   
                                    

                                                                                                 

                                                                                                 

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 660 Corp. Office Infrastructure 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 

TOTAL REVENU

E - - - - - -

EXPENSES: 
-

Other Interpro
gram Charges 

Cost Recovery (34,962.52) 
(34,962.52) 

Other Expenses Material&Supply 660 6,571.69 
Equipment Costs 660 Office -
Insurance 660 Office 11,015.13 
Taxes Corp Office 298.48 
Hydro 660 6,510.36 
Telephone 660 Corp Office 4,987.05 
Office Expenses 1,031.77 
Maintenance Supplies 660 Interior 904.99 
Leases 660 Equipment 2,528.79 
Internet Access 680 SCAN 1,114.26 

34,962.52 

-

(41,625.00) 

-

(34,962.52) 

-

(41,625.00) 

-

6,662.48 

-

(148,100.00) 
(41,625.00) 

6,250.00 
1,750.00 

11,750.00 
500.00 

6,750.00 
4,500.00 
3,875.00 
1,500.00 
3,500.00 
1,250.00 

41,625.00 

(34,962.52) 

6,571.69 
-

11,015.13 
298.48 

6,510.36 
4,987.05 
1,031.77 

904.99 
2,528.79 
1,114.26 

34,962.52 

(41,625.00) 

6,250.00 
1,750.00 

11,750.00 
500.00 

6,750.00 
4,500.00 
3,875.00 
1,500.00 
3,500.00 
1,250.00 

41,625.00 

6,662.48 

321.69 
(1,750.00) 

(734.87) 
(201.52) 
(239.64) 
487.05 

(2,843.23) 
(595.01) 
(971.21) 
(135.74) 

(6,662.48) 

(148,100.00)

7,500.00 
7,000.00 

47,000.00 
1,100.00 

27,000.00 
18,000.00 
15,500.00 
6,000.00 

14,000.00 
5,000.00 

148,100.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

- - - - - -

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) - - - - - -



  

                                             
                                                                
                                             
                                                                                         
                                     

                                             
                                             

                                          
                                          

                                              
                                                                                         
                                                               
                                                                            
                                              
                                                                                         
                                                               
                                                                                         
                                          

                                  

                                          

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 661 Tiffin CA & Maintenance 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 52,994.11 52,994.11 52,994.11 52,994.11 - 211,976.43 
Contributions - 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 9,000.00 
User Fees 7,911.57 4,000.00 7,911.57 4,000.00 3,911.57 119,500.00 
Use of Reserves - - - - - 3,000.00

 TOTAL REVENU

E 60,905.68 57,994.11 60,905.68 57,994.11 2,911.57 343,476.43 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 60,810.56 60,810.56 60,810.56 60,810.56 - 243,242.22 

60,810.56 60,810.56 60,810.56 60,810.56 - 243,242.22

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery 6,246.87 13,308.55 6,246.87 13,308.55 (7,061.68) 53,234.21 

6,246.87 13,308.55 6,246.87 13,308.55 (7,061.68) 53,234.21

 Other Expenses 
Material&Supply 3,376.58 5,125.00 3,376.58 5,125.00 (1,748.42) 16,500.00 
Equipment Costs 661 - - - - - 1,000.00 
Insurance 661 Tiffin Conservation Ar 277.02 300.00 277.02 300.00 (22.98) 1,200.00 
Taxes Tiffin Conservation Area 157.70 - 157.70 - 157.70 500.00 
Maintenance Supplies 661 2,133.28 5,600.00 2,133.28 5,600.00 (3,466.72) 21,000.00 
Advertisement 661 Tiffin CA - - - - - 1,000.00 
Waste Services 661 536.12 550.00 536.12 550.00 (13.88) 2,800.00 
Capital Asset Purchases - - - - - 3,000.00 

6,480.70 11,575.00 6,480.70 11,575.00 (5,094.30) 47,000.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

73,538.13 85,694.11 73,538.13 85,694.11 (12,155.98) 343,476.43 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (12,632.45) (27,700.00) (12,632.45) (27,700.00) 15,067.55 -



  

                                             
                                                       
                                             

                                             
                                             

                                
                                

                                      
                                                                        
                                                        
                                                              
                                                               
                                      

                                             

                                                                                                 

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 670 Corporate Governance 

CURRENT QTR CURRENT QTR ACTUAL BUDGET OVER (UNDER) BUDGET 
ACTUALS BUDGET YTD YTD YTD BUDGET 2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 71,626.58 71,626.58 71,626.58 71,626.58 - 286,506.30 
Use of Reserves 9,956.37 9,956.37 9,956.37 9,956.37 - 39,825.49

 TOTAL REVENU

E 81,582.95 81,582.95 81,582.95 81,582.95 - 326,331.79 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 77,082.95 77,082.95 77,082.95 77,082.95 - 330,831.79 

77,082.95 77,082.95 77,082.95 77,082.95 - 330,831.79

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery (11,809.63) (16,700.00) (11,809.63) (16,700.00) 4,890.37 (64,800.00) 

(11,809.63) (16,700.00) (11,809.63) (16,700.00) 4,890.37 (64,800.00)

 Other Expenses 
Memberships Prof.Dues 670 15,236.00 17,000.00 15,236.00 17,000.00 (1,764.00) 36,500.00 
Member Education/Training - 625.00 - 625.00 (625.00) 2,500.00 
Material&Supply 670 186.56 1,125.00 186.56 1,125.00 (938.44) 4,500.00 
Transportation 670 Municipal Officer - 1,500.00 - 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 13,000.00 
Insurance 670 Directors Liab 887.07 950.00 887.07 950.00 (62.93) 3,800.00 

16,309.63 21,200.00 16,309.63 21,200.00 (4,890.37) 60,300.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

81,582.95 81,582.95 81,582.95 81,582.95 - 326,331.79 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) - - - - - -

https://326,331.79
https://81,582.95
https://81,582.95
https://81,582.95
https://81,582.95


  

                                     
                                              
                                                                                       
                            

                              
                              

                                                    
                                                    

                                                     
                                                   
                                                  
                                                 
                                                                        
                                                                        
                                                                                       
                                                 
                                                     
                                                 
                                                                                             
                                                                                     
                                    

                              

 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 680 Corporate Administration 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

ACTUAL 
YTD 

BUDGET 
YTD 

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

BUDGET 
2022 

REVENUE: 
Municipal Levy Non Match 
Investment Income 
Miscellaneous Revenue 

TOTAL REVENU

E 

129,253.82 
3,665.36 

30.00 
132,949.18 

129,253.82 
6,250.00 

-
135,503.82 

129,253.82 
3,665.36 

30.00 
132,949.18 

129,253.82 
6,250.00 

-
135,503.82 

-
(2,584.64) 

30.00 
(2,554.64) 

517,015.29 
25,000.00 

-
542,015.29 

EXPENSES:
 Wa ges and Interprogram Charges 62,810.18 

62,810.18 
129,253.82 
129,253.82 

62,810.18 
62,810.18 

129,253.82 
129,253.82 

(66,443.64) 
(66,443.64) 

517,015.29 
517,015.29

 Other Interpro gram Charges 
Cost Recovery - (21,417.00) - (21,417.00) 21,417.00 (215,500.00) 

- (21,417.00) - (21,417.00) 21,417.00 (215,500.00)

 Other Expenses 
Staff Expense 680 Staff 252.94 1,500.00 252.94 1,500.00 (1,247.06) 6,000.00 
Memberships Prof.Dues 680 Admin S 1,686.33 2,500.00 1,686.33 2,500.00 (813.67) 4,000.00 
Staff Education/Training 5,389.36 5,000.00 5,389.36 5,000.00 389.36 27,000.00 
Material&Supply 6,390.41 7,167.00 6,390.41 7,167.00 (776.59) 17,500.00 
Legal Costs - 250.00 - 250.00 (250.00) 1,000.00 
Consultant Fees - 500.00 - 500.00 (500.00) 2,000.00 
Audit Fees - - - - - 20,000.00 
Interest & Bank Chgs 680 4,498.48 5,000.00 4,498.48 5,000.00 (501.52) 20,000.00 
Uniform & Special Clothing Expense 234.04 1,500.00 234.04 1,500.00 (1,265.96) 6,000.00 
Advertisement 680 3,298.70 4,250.00 3,298.70 4,250.00 (951.30) 17,000.00 
Bad Debt Expense 680 Write Off Sub 0.90 - 0.90 - 0.90 -
Transfer to Reserves - - - - - 120,000.00 

21,751.16 27,667.00 21,751.16 27,667.00 (5,915.84) 240,500.00

 TOTAL EXPENSES 

84,561.34 135,503.82 84,561.34 135,503.82 (50,942.48) 542,015.29 

https://542,015.29
https://50,942.48
https://135,503.82
https://84,561.34
https://135,503.82
https://84,561.34


   

                                                                    

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 
Unaudited Statement of Operations 

For The 3 Periods Ending March 31, 2022 

Division 680 Corporate Administration 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

CURRENT QTR 
ACTUALS 
48,387.84 

CURRENT QTR 
BUDGET 

-

ACTUAL 
YTD 

48,387.84 

BUDGET 
YTD 

-

OVER (UNDER) 
YTD BUDGET 

48,387.84 

BUDGET 
2022 

-



 
 

 

Staff Report: 13-04-22-BOD 
 
Date: 22/04/2022 
 
To: Chair and Members of the Board of Directors 
 
From: Maria Leung, Communications Coordinator 
 
 
SUBJECT: Communications Report – March 12, 2022 – April 8, 2022 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
RESOLVED THAT: Staff Report No. 13-04-22-BOD regarding NVCA 
Communications – March 12, 2022 – April 8, 2022, be received. 
 
 
Purpose of the Staff Report 
This staff report presents a summary of NVCA media coverage and public outreach 
during the period of March 12, 2022 – April 8, 2022. 
The following outlines the communications and media coverage during the period. 

 
1. Flood Messages 

No flood messages were issued during this reporting period. 

2. Media coverage of NVCA news releases 

Welcome back to the Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival!, issued on March 30, 2022 

Title Media Outlet Date Reference 

WELCOME BACK TO THE 
SPRING TONIC MAPLE 
SYRUP FESTIVAL 

Barrie 360 April 2, 
2022 
 

Byron Wesson, 
Director of 
Conservation 
Services 

Pancakes, sausages at 
Tiffin attract crowd (6 
photos) 

Barrie Today   
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Title Media Outlet Date Reference 

The Spring Tonic Maple 
Syrup Festival returns this 
year 

Barrie Today March 30, 
2022 

Byron Wesson, 
Director of 
Conservation 
Services 

The Spring Tonic Maple 
Syrup Festival returns this 
year 

Bradford Today March 30, 
2022 

Byron Wesson, 
Director of 
Conservation 
Services 

The Spring Tonic Maple 
Syrup Festival returns this 
year 

Collingwood Today March 30, 
2022 

Byron Wesson, 
Director of 
Conservation 
Services 

Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 
Festival returns to Tiffin 
Conservation Area 

Barrie Advance March 30, 
2022 

Byron Wesson, 
Director of 
Conservation 
Services 

 
All other media releases can be found on NVCA website under "News." 
 

3. Other Media Coverage 

Title Media Outlet Date Reference 

SPRING IS IN THE AIR; 
MELTING ICE ON LOCAL 
WATERWAYS 

Barrie 360 March 14, 
2022 

 

NVCA issues warning to 
stay away from water 

Hamilton 
Spectator 

March 17, 
2022 

 

NVCA issues warning to 
stay away from water 

New Tecumseth 
Times 

March 17, 
2022 

 

NVCA issues warning to 
stay away from water 

Toronto Star March 17, 
2022 

 

How much did Innisfil 
councillors make in 2021? 

Hamilton 
Spectator 

March 30, 
2022 

Councillor Rob Nicol 

How much did Innisfil 
councillors make in 2021? 

Innisfil Journal March 30, 
2022 

Councillor Rob Nicol 

Collingwood reports $2.1M 
in non-competitive 
purchases last year 

Collingwood Today March 31, 
2022 

 

http://www.nvca.on.ca/news
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Title Media Outlet Date Reference 

Building near water? 
Check to see if you need 
an NVCA permit 

Peterborough 
Examiner 

March 31, 
2022 

Chris Hibberd, 
Director, Watershed 
Management 
Services 

Building near water? 
Check to see if you need 
an NVCA permit 

Toronto Star March 31, 
2022 

Chris Hibberd, 
Director, Watershed 
Management 
Services 

Collective political opinions 
of the community 

Springwater News 
 
March 31, 
2022 
 

 

 
DISCLAIMER: NVCA does not allege that the information provided in the media articles depicts accurate 
statements or testimonies on behalf of any individual named, and is not responsible for any misinterpretation of 
information or misquoted statement(s). 

 
2. Other Communication/Media Outreach 

• Ongoing – social media outreach (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, LinkedIn) 

3. Presentations/Displays/Key Events by NVCA staff 

• March 8 to April 15: Community Group Maple Syrup tours 
• March 18: Education team had a booth display at Park Place in Barrie 
• April 2 to 3: Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

 
Issues/Analysis 
 
In this reporting period, media coverage and public outreach/communications 
were positive with regard to NVCA work and programs.  

There are no issues of concern at this time. 

Relevance to Authority Policy/Mandate 
Communications and promotion are an integral part of the work of NVCA. 
Reference to both can be found in the 2020 - 2025 Strategic Plan. 
 
Impact on Authority Finances 
Staff time to prepare this report is addressed in the 2022 budget. 
 
Reviewed by: Approved for submission by: 
Original Signed by Original Signed by  
Sheryl Flannagan Doug Hevenor  
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SPRING IS IN THE AIR; MELTING 

ICE ON LOCAL WATERWAYS 

UNSAFE ICE AND SLIPPERY BANKS 

ALREADY EXIST 

March 14, 2022 by Dan Blakeley 

Barrie 360 

 

Temperatures will be climbing this 

week – a high of 2 today; might get to 

14 by Thursday, which has brought 

the annual warning from conservation 

authorities about unsafe ice and 

slippery banks. 

It’s a chat parents will want to have 

with the kids who may be out playing 

with their friends during the March 

Break. 

Anglers, canoeists, hikers, hunters, 

and those walking pets are also urged 

to stay well back from waterways. 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority (NVCA) offers the following 

tips: 

• Keep family and pets away from 

the edges of all bodies of water.   

• Avoid all recreational activities in 

or around water, especially near 

ice jams or ice-covered 

watercourses and waterbodies—

including municipally managed 

stormwater ponds.   

• Do not attempt to walk on ice-

covered waterbodies or drive 

through flooded roads or fast-

moving water.   

• If you live close to the water, move 

objects such as chairs or benches 

away from the water’s edge to 

avoid losing them during potential 

spring high water.     

• Avoid walking close to and across 

riverbanks and ice-covered water 

to prevent falling through.  

 

 



NVCA issues warning to stay away 

from water 

March 17, 2022 by Brian Lockhart 

Hamilton Spectator 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority is issuing a warning to 

residents to stay well back from 

waterways, ditches, ponds, and lakes 

this time of year. 

With the recent arrival of spring-like 

temperatures, unsafe ice and slippery 

banks have already created a natural 

hazard. The onset of spring will bring 

rain and melting snow, which will 

cause the breakup of ice along 

watercourses and lakes as well as an 

increase in the flow of streams and 

rivers. 

This creates a hazardous condition 

which can be life-threatening if a 

person falls into the extremely cold 

water. Conservation authorities across 

the region have put out the warning to 

remind residents to keep their families 

and pets away from the water. 

This is especially important during this 

transitional time of year, and it is 

especially dangerous for children. 

Authorities say you should warn young 

children about the dangers of playing 

in an area close to water. 

For those who enjoy the outdoors, 

anglers, canoeists, hikers, hunters and 

other recreational outdoor enthusiasts 

need to be extra vigilant if they decide 

to pursue their sport or activity. 

The NVCA is warning residents to 

avoid recreation activities in or around 

water, especially near ice jams or ice-

covered water, including municipally 

managed stormwater ponds. 

You should not attempt to walk on ice-

covered bodies of water or drive 

through flooded roads or fast-moving 

water. If you live close to a water 

area, move objects such as chair or 

benches away from the water’s edge 

to avoid losing them during potential 

spring high water. You should avoid 

walking close to riverbanks and do not 

walk across ice covered water as the 

ice is not thing enough to support a 

person’s weight this time of year. 

The NVCA continues to monitor 

waterways and will issue flood 

messages as conditions warrant. 

 



NVCA issues warning to stay away 

from water 

March 17, 2022 by Brian Lockhart 

New Tecumseth Times 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority is issuing a warning to 

residents to stay well back from 

waterways, ditches, ponds, and lakes 

this time of year. 

With the recent arrival of spring-like 

temperatures, unsafe ice and slippery 

banks have already created a natural 

hazard. The onset of spring will bring 

rain and melting snow, which will 

cause the breakup of ice along 

watercourses and lakes as well as an 

increase in the flow of streams and 

rivers. 

This creates a hazardous condition 

which can be life-threatening if a 

person falls into the extremely cold 

water. Conservation authorities across 

the region have put out the warning to 

remind residents to keep their families 

and pets away from the water. 

This is especially important during this 

transitional time of year, and it is 

especially dangerous for children. 

Authorities say you should warn young 

children about the dangers of playing 

in an area close to water. 

For those who enjoy the outdoors, 

anglers, canoeists, hikers, hunters and 

other recreational outdoor enthusiasts 

need to be extra vigilant if they decide 

to pursue their sport or activity. 

The NVCA is warning residents to 

avoid recreation activities in or around 

water, especially near ice jams or ice-

covered water, including municipally 

managed stormwater ponds. 

You should not attempt to walk on ice-

covered bodies of water or drive 

through flooded roads or fast-moving 

water. If you live close to a water 

area, move objects such as chair or 

benches away from the water’s edge 

to avoid losing them during potential 

spring high water. You should avoid 

walking close to riverbanks and do not 

walk across ice covered water as the 

ice is not thing enough to support a 

person’s weight this time of year. 

The NVCA continues to monitor 

waterways and will issue flood 

messages as conditions warrant. 

 



NVCA issues warning to stay away 

from water 

March 17, 2022 by Brian Lockhart 

Toronto Star 

The Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority is issuing a warning to 

residents to stay well back from 

waterways, ditches, ponds, and lakes 

this time of year. 

With the recent arrival of spring-like 

temperatures, unsafe ice and slippery 

banks have already created a natural 

hazard. The onset of spring will bring 

rain and melting snow, which will 

cause the breakup of ice along 

watercourses and lakes as well as an 

increase in the flow of streams and 

rivers. 

This creates a hazardous condition 

which can be life-threatening if a 

person falls into the extremely cold 

water. Conservation authorities across 

the region have put out the warning to 

remind residents to keep their families 

and pets away from the water. 

This is especially important during this 

transitional time of year, and it is 

especially dangerous for children. 

Authorities say you should warn young 

children about the dangers of playing 

in an area close to water. 

For those who enjoy the outdoors, 

anglers, canoeists, hikers, hunters and 

other recreational outdoor enthusiasts 

need to be extra vigilant if they decide 

to pursue their sport or activity. 

The NVCA is warning residents to 

avoid recreation activities in or around 

water, especially near ice jams or ice-

covered water, including municipally 

managed stormwater ponds. 

You should not attempt to walk on ice-

covered bodies of water or drive 

through flooded roads or fast-moving 

water. If you live close to a water 

area, move objects such as chair or 

benches away from the water’s edge 

to avoid losing them during potential 

spring high water. You should avoid 

walking close to riverbanks and do not 

walk across ice covered water as the 

ice is not thing enough to support a 

person’s weight this time of year. 

The NVCA continues to monitor 

waterways and will issue flood 

messages as conditions warrant. 

 



The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival returns this year 

'Not only is it a celebration of spring, 

but it’s also a way to celebrate the 

Canadian heritage of maple syrup 

production,' says NVCA official 

March 30, 2022 

Barrie Today 

 

 

 

NEWS RELEASE 

NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY 

CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 

************************** 

UTOPIA – The Spring Tonic Maple 

Syrup Festival will once again be open 

to the public this weekend, April 2 and 

3, 2022, at the Tiffin Conservation 

Area. 

Visitors will learn first hand how maple 

syrup was made by Indigenous 

peoples and pioneers. The sugar shack 

will also be open for visitors to see 

how maple syrup is produced today. 

Admission also includes a full pancake 

and sausage breakfast with fresh 

maple syrup, as well as activities 

including historical re-enactors, 

firefighters, paramedics, outdoor skill 

demonstration by the Cadets and 

much more! 

“The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival is a 30-year tradition. We are 

so pleased to host it again after two 

years of minimum contact with the 

public,” said Byron Wesson, director of 

conservation services at the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority (NVCA). “Not only is it a 

celebration of spring, but it’s also a 

way to celebrate the Canadian 

heritage of maple syrup production 

and provide educational entertainment 

for adults and children alike.” 

The festival is jointly hosted by NVCA 

and the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

Volunteers from the Rotary Club 

generously donate their time to 

organize Spring Tonic and manage 

different stations during the event. 

“We appreciate the many inquiries 

coming forward for assisting us with 

this year’s festival,” said John O’Brien, 

chairperson of the Spring Tonic 



Festival at the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

“Bringing back the many volunteers 

who make this festival happen will be 

a treat after this two-year hiatus. It 

will be a pleasure to see families of 

smiling faces once again.” 

Tiffin’s very own maple syrup will be 

for sale in limited quantities. All 

proceeds go toward Rotary community 

projects and the maintenance of 

the NVCA's conservation areas. 



The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival returns this year 

The festival will be open to the public 

on April 2 and 3 at the Tiffin 

Conservation Area 

March 30, 2022 

Bradford Today 

 

 

 

NEWS RELEASE 

NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY 

CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 

************************** 

UTOPIA – The Spring Tonic Maple 

Syrup Festival will once again be open 

to the public this weekend, April 2 and 

3, 2022, at the Tiffin Conservation 

Area. 

Visitors will learn first hand how maple 

syrup was made by Indigenous 

peoples and pioneers. The sugar shack 

will also be open for visitors to see 

how maple syrup is produced today. 

Admission also includes a full pancake 

and sausage breakfast with fresh 

maple syrup, as well as activities 

including historical re-enactors, 

firefighters, paramedics, outdoor skill 

demonstration by the Cadets and 

much more! 

“The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival is a 30-year tradition. We are 

so pleased to host it again after two 

years of minimum contact with the 

public,” said Byron Wesson, director of 

conservation services at the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority (NVCA). “Not only is it a 

celebration of spring, but it’s also a 

way to celebrate the Canadian 

heritage of maple syrup production 

and provide educational entertainment 

for adults and children alike.” 

The festival is jointly hosted by NVCA 

and the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

Volunteers from the Rotary Club 

generously donate their time to 

organize Spring Tonic and manage 

different stations during the event. 

“We appreciate the many inquiries 

coming forward for assisting us with 

this year’s festival,” said John O’Brien, 

chairperson of the Spring Tonic 

Festival at the Rotary Club of Barrie. 



“Bringing back the many volunteers 

who make this festival happen will be 

a treat after this two-year hiatus. It 

will be a pleasure to see families of 

smiling faces once again.” 

Tiffin’s very own maple syrup will be 

for sale in limited quantities. All 

proceeds go toward Rotary community 

projects and the maintenance of 

the NVCA's conservation areas. 



Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

returns this year 

Festival will be open to the public on 

April 2 and 3 at the Tiffin Conservation 

Area 

March 30, 2022 

Collingwood Today 

 

 

 

NEWS RELEASE 

NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY 

CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 

************************** 

UTOPIA – The Spring Tonic Maple 

Syrup Festival will once again be open 

to the public this weekend, April 2 and 

3, 2022, at the Tiffin Conservation 

Area. 

Visitors will learn first hand how maple 

syrup was made by Indigenous 

peoples and pioneers. The sugar shack 

will also be open for visitors to see 

how maple syrup is produced today. 

Admission also includes a full pancake 

and sausage breakfast with fresh 

maple syrup, as well as activities 

including historical re-enactors, 

firefighters, paramedics, outdoor skill 

demonstration by the Cadets and 

much more! 

“The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival is a 30-year tradition. We are 

so pleased to host it again after two 

years of minimum contact with the 

public,” said Byron Wesson, director of 

conservation services at the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority (NVCA). “Not only is it a 

celebration of spring, but it’s also a 

way to celebrate the Canadian 

heritage of maple syrup production 

and provide educational entertainment 

for adults and children alike.” 

The festival is jointly hosted by NVCA 

and the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

Volunteers from the Rotary Club 

generously donate their time to 

organize Spring Tonic and manage 

different stations during the event. 

“We appreciate the many inquiries 

coming forward for assisting us with 

this year’s festival,” said John O’Brien, 

chairperson of the Spring Tonic 

Festival at the Rotary Club of Barrie. 



“Bringing back the many volunteers 

who make this festival happen will be 

a treat after this two-year hiatus. It 

will be a pleasure to see families of 

smiling faces once again.” 

Tiffin’s very own maple syrup will be 

for sale in limited quantities. All 

proceeds go toward Rotary community 

projects and the maintenance of 

the NVCA's conservation areas. 



How much did Innisfil councillors 

make in 2021? 

March 30, 2022 by Shane MacDonald 

Hamilton Spectator 

 

The town of Innisfil has released 

information about how much Innisfil 

council members were paid in 2021, 

as required by the municipal act.  

A report outlining how much council 

was paid was included in the March 23 

council meeting agenda.  

Innisfil Mayor Lynn Dollin was paid 

$44,564 for her role as mayor and 

received $8,000 as a council per diem. 

Dollin also received pay for her roles 

at the Association of Municipalities of 

Ontario ($6,458), the County of 

Simcoe ($52,281) InnPower, 

InnServices, and InnTerprises 

($24,550), and South Simcoe Police 

Services Board ($4,550). Her total 

remuneration was $140,404.  

Dan Davidson was paid $29,860 for 

his role as deputy mayor and received 

$1,900 as a council per diem. 

Davidson also received $17,084 for his 

role on County of Simcoe council, for a 

total remuneration of $48,845. 

Ward councillors all received the same 

base salary of $24,100.  

Coun. Rob Nicol received $902 for his 

role on the Nottawasaga Valley 

Conservation Authority Board. Coun. 

Alex Waters received $900 for his role 

on the Lake Simcoe Region 

Conservation Authority. Coun. Bill Van 

Berkel received $11,400 for his role 

on the InnPower, InnServices, and 

InnTerprises boards.  

The full report on council 

remuneration is available on the 

town’s website. 

https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/10F783976C1E4244BA56DF6D1407E38E-Statement%20of%20Council%20Remuneration%20and%20Expenses%20.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/10F783976C1E4244BA56DF6D1407E38E-Statement%20of%20Council%20Remuneration%20and%20Expenses%20.pdf


How much did Innisfil councillors 

make in 2021? 

March 30, 2022 by Shane MacDonald 

Innisfil Journal 

 

The town of Innisfil has released 

information about how much Innisfil 

council members were paid in 2021, 

as required by the municipal act.  

A report outlining how much council 

was paid was included in the March 23 

council meeting agenda.  

Innisfil Mayor Lynn Dollin was paid 

$44,564 for her role as mayor and 

received $8,000 as a council per diem. 

Dollin also received pay for her roles 

at the Association of Municipalities of 

Ontario ($6,458), the County of 

Simcoe ($52,281) InnPower, 

InnServices, and InnTerprises 

($24,550), and South Simcoe Police 

Services Board ($4,550). Her total 

remuneration was $140,404.  

Dan Davidson was paid $29,860 for 

his role as deputy mayor and received 

$1,900 as a council per diem. 

Davidson also received $17,084 for his 

role on County of Simcoe council, for a 

total remuneration of $48,845. 

Ward councillors all received the same 

base salary of $24,100.  

Coun. Rob Nicol received $902 for his 

role on the Nottawasaga Valley 

Conservation Authority Board. Coun. 

Alex Waters received $900 for his role 

on the Lake Simcoe Region 

Conservation Authority. Coun. Bill Van 

Berkel received $11,400 for his role 

on the InnPower, InnServices, and 

InnTerprises boards.  

The full report on council 

remuneration is available on the 

town’s website. 

https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/10F783976C1E4244BA56DF6D1407E38E-Statement%20of%20Council%20Remuneration%20and%20Expenses%20.pdf
https://innisfil.civicweb.net/FileStorage/10F783976C1E4244BA56DF6D1407E38E-Statement%20of%20Council%20Remuneration%20and%20Expenses%20.pdf


Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

returns to Tiffin Conservation Area 

March 30, 2022 

Barrie Advance 

 

The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

will once again be open to the public 

April 2-3 at the Tiffin Conservation 

Area in Utopia. 

Visitors will learn how maple syrup 

was made by Indigenous peoples and 

pioneers, and the sugar shack will be 

open to see how maple syrup is 

produced today. There's a full pancake 

and sausage breakfast with maple 

syrup and activities.  

Admission also includes a full 

pancake-and-sausage breakfast with 

fresh maple syrup, as well as activities 

including historical re-enactors, 

firefighters, paramedics, outdoor skill 

demonstration by the cadets and 

much more. 

“The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival is a 30-year tradition. We are 

so pleased to host it again after two 

years of minimum contact with the 

public,” said Byron Wesson, director of 

conservation services at the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority (NVCA). “Not only is it a 

celebration of spring, but it’s also a 

way to celebrate the Canadian 

heritage of maple-syrup production 

and provide educational entertainment 

for adults and children alike.” 

The festival is jointly hosted by NVCA 

and the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

Volunteers from Rotary generously 

donate their time to organize Spring 

Tonic and manage different stations 

during the event. 

“We appreciate the many inquiries 

coming forward for assisting us with 

this year’s festival,” said John O’Brien, 

chairperson of the Spring Tonic 

Festival at the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

“Bringing back the many volunteers 

who make this festival happen will be 

a treat after this two-year hiatus. It 

will be a pleasure to see families of 

smiling faces once again.” 

Tiffin’s very own maple syrup will be 

for sale in limited quantities. All 

proceeds go toward Rotary community 

projects and the maintenance of NVCA 

conservation areas. 



Collingwood reports $2.1M in non-

competitive purchases last year 

The town reported 13 non-standard 

and 3 emergency purchases for 2021, 

which is down from 34 in 2020 

March 31, 2022 by Erika Engel 

Collingwood Today 

 

Downtown Collingwood on a cloudy 

morning. Erika 

Engel/CollingwoodToday 

The Town of Collingwood made 16 

purchases over $25,000 last year 

without a competitive bid process. 

In 2021, the town made three 

emergency purchases worth a total of 

$71,943.50 and 13 staff approved 

non-standard purchases totalling 

$2,107,985.  

That’s down from 30 non-standard 

and four emergency purchases in 

2020 totalling about $2.2 million and 

$185,700 respectively.  

The bylaw governing the town’s 

procurement of goods and services 

will sometimes allow a purchase to be 

made without a competitive bid 

process, if the circumstances fit the 

bylaw exemptions.  

The town’s purchasing bylaw, enacted 

in 2017, requires such purchases over 

$25,000 to be reported to the public 

on an annual basis because they do 

not follow the standard procedures set 

out for purchasing items and services.   

“Reporting non-standard and 

emergency purchases is for 

information … these types of non-

competitive purchases are a fact of 

efficient and effective programs and 

procurement at all levels of 

government,” states a staff report 

submitted by Clerk Sara Almas headed 

to the corporate and community 

services committee on April 4. “There 

are legitimate reasons to proceed with 

a non-competitive purchase, and 

these are used judiciously.”  

The reporting includes emergency 

purchases, which can only be made 

for public health and safety, 

maintenance of essential town 

services, the welfare of persons or 

public property, or the security of the 

town’s interests. 

Emergency purchases in 2021 

amounted to less than half the 2020 

totals with $71,943 spent in 2021.  

The emergency purchases included 

security services for the downtown 

transit terminal ($33,219) and pump 

repair for the water treatment plant 

($15,863).  

The other emergency purchase was 

$22,861 to Black and McDonald to 

replace traffic signal equipment at 

Hurontario and Sixth Street. The 

signals broke down and the town had 

to send an after-hours crew to 

temporarily reinstate the intersection 

with borrowed equipment.  

Non-standard procurements include 

purchases made without or with a 

limited competitive process, meaning 



the town does not seek bids from 

multiple sources in an open 

competition.  

In 2021, the largest non-standard 

purchase was $1.1 million for 

membrane replacement at the water 

treatment plant. The plant uses 

ZeeWeed membrane technology, 

which is exclusively supplied by Suez.  

The town’s procurement bylaw allows 

for non-competitive purchases if there 

is only one supplier for a product that 

must be compatible with existing 

products.  

For this same reason, the fire 

department’s $120,000 purchase of 

bunker gear from AJ Stone was 

permitted and included in the non-

standard purchase report for 2021.  

The Hurontario Street crosswalk at the 

Hamilton Drain Trail also made this 

year’s list. The crossover was 

constructed in 2019, was vandalized, 

fixed, and then re-done after studies 

in the area showed a very high rate of 

non-compliance from drivers. The 

flashing yellow lights were removed 

and replaced with red-yellow-green 

traffic lights.  

A total of $79,264 was included on the 

non-standard purchase report for the 

replacement, which was done by Black 

and MacDonald, the town’s current 

traffic light and street maintenance 

contractor.  

This purchase was approved per the 

bylaw clause stating a non-

competitive purchase is allowed 

where, for technical reasons, there’s 

an absence of competition. 

Cleaning out a digester at the town’s 

wastewater treatment plant cost 

$76,906 last year and was done 

without a competitive bid process in 

the interest of getting it done quickly. 

According to the staff report, the 

digester was about to fail and needed 

cleaning quickly.  

The third phase of a sprinkler system 

installation at the Eddie Bush 

Memorial Arena was also contracted 

without a bid process. The town hired 

Vipond Inc. for the $171,050 

installation, which is the same 

contractor who completed the first two 

phases of the same project.  

A joint project with the Nottawasaga 

Valley Conservation Authority to 

complete maintenance work and 

clearing on the Pretty River dyke 

landed on the non-standard purchase 

list for $100,000. The conservation 

authority hired the contractor through 

their procurement process.  

The town’s bylaw allows non-standard 

purchases from a public body or non-

profit organization.  

In total, four of the 2021 non-

standard purchases were made 

because of the absence of 

competition, six were made because a 

specific product carried by only one 

supplier was required for 

compatibility, two were for goods, 

services, construction from a public 

body or non-profit, and one purchase 

was made through the Ontario Vendor 

of Record progam.  

Following the April 4 committee 

meeting, the non-standard purchase 

report will go to council on April 19 for 

council's information.  

 

https://www.collingwoodtoday.ca/local-news/get-the-crosswalk-lights-changed-asap-says-council-to-town-staff-4335187
https://www.collingwoodtoday.ca/local-news/get-the-crosswalk-lights-changed-asap-says-council-to-town-staff-4335187


Building near water? Check to see 

if you need an NVCA permit 

March 31, 2022 by Brian Lockhart 

Peterborough Examiner 

If you live in the Nottawasaga Valley 

Watershed, and are planning to make 

improvements to your home and 

property, you should check with the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Area 

to see if you are in a regulated area. 

Some properties are at risk from 

flooding and erosion. Projects that 

may require and NVCA permit can 

include building or rebuilding a house, 

deck, garage, shed, dock, shore wall, 

or an addition to a home. 

Depending on the type of build and 

location, permits may also be required 

for grading, fill or topsoil importation 

and placement. 

The NVCA is tasked by the Province of 

Ontario to regulate activities in natural 

and hazardous areas in order to avoid 

the loss of lie and damage to property 

from flooding and erosion. 

To check if you are in an NVCA 

regulated area, search for your 

property address in the Interactive 

Data Viewer on the NVCA website. 

If you’re still not sure, NVCA provides 

free consultations online or over the 

phone so residents can easily 

correspond with Regulations 

Technicians to confirm if their property 

is regulated or to discuss projects and 

permit requirements. 

“Many property owners often tell us 

that their property has never flooded 

in the many years that they’ve lived 

there, but that is changing,” advises 

Chris Hibberd, Director of Watershed 

Management Services. “Even today we 

are experiencing more intense 

rainstorms and other extreme weather 

events associated with climate 

change.” 

If your property is located in New 

Tecumseth or Adjala-Tosorontio, you 

should check to see if you are in a 

regulated area. 

You should also do the check if you 

own properties within the NVCA 

jurisdiction in Amaranth, Barrie, Blue 

Mountains, Bradford West 

Gwillimbury, Clearview, Collingwood, 

Essa, Grey Highlands, Innnisfil, 

Melancthon, Mono, Mulmur, Oro-

Medonte, Shelburne, and Springwater. 



Collective political opinions of the 

community 

March 31, 2022 

Springwater News 

 

Content mentioning NVCA is excerpted 

below from the article 

Webinar Presentation on Phragmites 

Phragmites australis (European 

Common Reed) is an invasive 

perennial grass that is spreading 

rapidly throughout Ontario causing 

severe impacts in our communities 

and ecosystems. The Nottawasaga 

Valley Conservation Authority has 

developed a Phragmites & Invasive 

Species Action Plan for dealing with 

the species in the Nottawasaga Valley 

Watershed. They have also provided a 

1-hour prerecorded webinar for 

anyone looking for up-to-date 

information on what has been called 

“Canada’s worst invasive plant”. 

Hosted by Watersheds Canada, this 

presentation outlines why Phragmites 

is such a concern and what control 

methods have been used in sensitive 

habitats. Furthermore, it highlights 

successful control programs underway 

in Ontario as well as plans for 

implementing a province-wide control 

program. Access the webinar at 

youtube.com/watch?v=RQ7mlow3lDg. 



Building near water? Check to see 

if you need an NVCA permit 

March 31, 2022 by Brian Lockhart 

Toronto Star 

If you live in the Nottawasaga Valley 

Watershed, and are planning to make 

improvements to your home and 

property, you should check with the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Area 

to see if you are in a regulated area. 

Some properties are at risk from 

flooding and erosion. Projects that 

may require and NVCA permit can 

include building or rebuilding a house, 

deck, garage, shed, dock, shore wall, 

or an addition to a home. 

Depending on the type of build and 

location, permits may also be required 

for grading, fill or topsoil importation 

and placement. 

The NVCA is tasked by the Province of 

Ontario to regulate activities in natural 

and hazardous areas in order to avoid 

the loss of lie and damage to property 

from flooding and erosion. 

To check if you are in an NVCA 

regulated area, search for your 

property address in the Interactive 

Data Viewer on the NVCA website. 

If you’re still not sure, NVCA provides 

free consultations online or over the 

phone so residents can easily 

correspond with Regulations 

Technicians to confirm if their property 

is regulated or to discuss projects and 

permit requirements. 

“Many property owners often tell us 

that their property has never flooded 

in the many years that they’ve lived 

there, but that is changing,” advises 

Chris Hibberd, Director of Watershed 

Management Services. “Even today we 

are experiencing more intense 

rainstorms and other extreme weather 

events associated with climate 

change.” 

If your property is located in New 

Tecumseth or Adjala-Tosorontio, you 

should check to see if you are in a 

regulated area. 

You should also do the check if you 

own properties within the NVCA 

jurisdiction in Amaranth, Barrie, Blue 

Mountains, Bradford West 

Gwillimbury, Clearview, Collingwood, 

Essa, Grey Highlands, Innnisfil, 

Melancthon, Mono, Mulmur, Oro-

Medonte, Shelburne, and Springwater. 



WELCOME BACK TO THE SPRING 

TONIC MAPLE SYRUP FESTIVAL 

MORE THAN MAPLE SYRUP – HORSE 

DRAWN WAGON RIDES, ZOO TO YOU 

ANIMAL SHOW, BIRD BOX BUILDING, 

LIVE MUSIC AND MORE! 

April 2, 2022 

Barrie 360 

 

The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

will once again be open to the public 

this weekend, April 2-3, 2022, at the 

Tiffin Conservation Area. 

Visitors will learn firsthand how maple 

syrup was made by Indigenous 

Peoples and pioneers. The sugar shack 

will also be open for visitors to see 

how maple syrup is produced today. 

Admission also includes a full pancake 

and sausage breakfast with fresh 

maple syrup, as well as activities 

including historical reenactors, 

firefighters, paramedics, outdoor skill 

demonstration by the Cadets and 

much more! 

Take a horse wagon ride 

Come visit some Zoo to You animals 

“The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival is a 30-year tradition. We are 

so pleased to host it again after two 

years of minimum contact with the 

public,” said Byron Wesson, Director 

of Conservation Services at the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority (NVCA). 

“Not only is it a celebration of Spring, 

but it’s also a way to celebrate the 

Canadian heritage of maple syrup 

production and provide educational 

entertainment for adults and children 

alike.” 

The festival is jointly hosted by NVCA 

and the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

Volunteers from the Rotary Club 

generously donate their time to 

organize Spring Tonic and manage 

different stations during the event. 

“We appreciate the many inquiries 

coming forward for assisting us with 

this year’s festival,” said John O’Brien, 

Chairperson of the Spring Tonic 

Festival at the Rotary Club of Barrie. 

“Bringing back the many volunteers 

who make this festival happen will be 

a treat after this two-year hiatus. It 

will be a pleasure to see families of 

smiling faces once again.” 



Tiffin’s very own maple syrup will be 

for sale in limited quantities. All 

proceeds go towards Rotary 

community projects and the 

maintenance of NVCA’s conservation 

areas. 



Pancakes, sausages at Tiffin 

attract crowd (6 photos) 

Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

continues Sunday 

April 2, 2022 by Bob Bruton 

Barrie Today 

 

 

Adley Hogan, 18 months old, of 

Springwater Township, digs into 

pancakes and sausages at Saturday's 

Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival at 

the Tiffin Centre for Conservation, 

which continues Sunday.Bob Bruton 

/BarrieToday 

 

 

Evan Powell, left, of Friends of Fort 

Willow, explains how the pioneer 

method of metal cooking kettles 

makes maple syrup at Saturday's 

Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival at 

the Tiffin Centre for Conservation, 

which continues Sunday.Bob Bruton 

/BarrieToday 

 

Musician Rob Watts entertains those 

lining up for pancakes and sausages at 

Saturday's Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival at the Tiffin Centre for 

Conservation, which continues 

Sunday.Bob Bruton /BarrieToday 

 

Buckets gather sweet sap at 

Saturday's Spring Tonic Maple Syrup 

Festival at the Tiffin Centre for 

Conservation, which continues 

Sunday.Bob Bruton /BarrieToday 

 



The lineup was long for pancakes and 

sausages at Saturday's Spring Tonic 

Maple Syrup Festival at the Tiffin 

Centre for Conservation, which 

continues Sunday.Bob Bruton 

/BarrieToday 

A sure sign that winter’s days are 

numbered is the Spring Tonic Maple 

Syrup Festival at the Tiffin Centre for 

Conservation. 

Hosted by the Rotary Club of Barrie 

April 2 to 3, it’s a tradition spanning 

more than three decades. 

Saturday’s sunny, warming weather 

attracted many visitors to this year’s 

festival on the 8th Line of Essa 

Township. 

Those attending could take a trip back 

in time, to explore how Indigenous 

people and pioneers made maple 

syrup.  

Then there was a return to current 

times to see how maple syrup is made 

today. 

The tour ended with, what else, a 

pancake and sausage breakfast with 

fresh maple syrup. 

Tiffin’s own maple syrup was available 

for sale on site. 

The Spring Tonic Maple Syrup Festival 

continues Sunday, beginning at 9 

a.m., at $15 for adults, $10 for kids 

ages one to 12 and free for children 

less than one year old. 

All proceeds go toward the community 

and the maintenance of the 

Nottawasaga Valley Conservation 

Authority’s land. 

For more information, 

visit www.nvca.on.ca/Pages/Spring-

Tonic-Festival.aspx. 

 

http://www.nvca.on.ca/Pages/Spring-Tonic-Festival.aspx?utm_source=barrietoday.com&utm_campaign=barrietoday.com%3A%20outbound&utm_medium=referral
http://www.nvca.on.ca/Pages/Spring-Tonic-Festival.aspx?utm_source=barrietoday.com&utm_campaign=barrietoday.com%3A%20outbound&utm_medium=referral
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